
  

May 12, 2015 Village Board Agenda 
 

Agenda  
Village Board Meeting  
Tuesday, May 12, 2015 at 7:30 p.m.  
Jackson Village Hall  
N168W20733 Main St  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Any Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item (Please sign in). 
 
4. Public Hearing – Planned Unit Development Amendment– ABC Supply Co. Inc. – Sign on 
 Alcan Drive. 
 
5. Public Hearing – Planned Unit Development – RJ Wood – Alcan Court. 
 
6. Public Hearing – Planned Unit Development – Delaney Group LLC – Alcan Drive. 
 
7. Resolution 15-08 Recognition of James Micech, Building Inspector of the Year. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: 

 Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of April 14, 2015, and April 21, 2015. 
 Licenses. 

Operator Licenses. 
 American Legion:   
 Richard J. McHugh    

  Fox Brothers Piggly Wiggly:   
  Jennifer Bateman, Jody Cardarelle, Jodi Fisher, Carla Harry, Kathleen Herbst, Ashley 

 Herther, Susan Nettesheim, Lynn Rosbeck, Therese Ross, Kelly Schopp    
  Main Street Mart: 
  Jessica Gyuro, Sarah Harrison, Pamela Hildebrandt, Melissa Huttner, Julie Limbach, 

 Timothy Spievogel Jr., Tonya Zasada    
  Jimmy’s Restaurant and Bar: 
  Abbie Berger, Bonnie Ford, Joseph Gilmeister, Nichole Kassner, Angela Koutsios 
  Jessica Schlafer, Laurel Schultz, Juliane Seifert, Esther Trainor, Agnes Turner, Bridget 

 Wolf    
  Jackson Pub: 
  Debra Egerer, Susan Hoppe, Gregory Kitner, Lisa LaPine, Michelle Meyer, Jennifer R. 

 Miller, Amanda Raskiewicz, Jeri L. Rice-Stefanick, Christine Sauer, Jon Zandi    
  Latest Edition: 
  Jennifer Ancil, Jodi Kulis, Dennis Nimkie, Martha Nimkie, Jessica Stoiber, Brian 

 Thetford     
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  Walgreens:   
  Joan Christian, Joy Christian, Kelly Fechter, Meghan Graff, Julie Hipenbecker, Ann 

 Lorge, Jennifer Matasek, Rachael Nelson, Renata Oswald, Christopher Parker, Dipti 
 Patel, Teresa Schutts, Michael Rodenkirch, Nelia Scovill, Mark Seip, Karly Taylor, 
 Robin Van Aacken   

  East Side Mart:   
  Cassandra Martin, Ashley Mitchell, Bryon Larsh, Rebecca Meeks, Emily McAllister, 

 Brian Mejaki,    
  Village Mart: 
  Shirley Jackson, Megan Kloskey, Lisa Lehman, Keith Martin,  Jennifer Miner, Carol 

 Purgett, Rosemary Rechlin, Mariah Wimer, Melissa Wise    
  Entertainment License: 

 Action in Jackson – Jackson Festivals, Inc. 
 Action in Jackson Community Event June 12, 13, & 14   
 Temporary Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage (Picnic License) 

                 Jackson Festivals, Inc. for Action in Jackson, June 12, 13, & 14 
 
9. Budget & Finance Committee. 

 Presentation of 2014 Audit. 
 Update Status of Long-Term Financial Plan and Tax Incremental Financing  Development. 
 Community Center – East Outdoor Tot Area Project, Discussion and Action. 
 Resolution 15-07 Preliminary Assessment Georgetown Dr. Reconstruction Project. 
 Price Reduction of EMS Invoice for Ms. Weigard. 
 Sale of Ambulance 1250. 
 Review of Engineering Proposal – Sidewalk on West Side of Jackson Dr. from   
 Jackson Dr. to Well #6. 

 
10. Park & Recreation. 

 Approval of Amusement Device HED Rental at Jackson Park Shelter 2 & 3.   
 

11. Departmental Reports. 
 
12. Washington County Board Report. 
 
13. West Bend School District Liaison Report. 
 
14. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report.  

 Greater Jackson Business Alliance – Donation of Audio Video Equipment & Installation to 
 the Jackson Community Center. 

 
15. Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee/Mid-Moraine Municipal Report. 
 
16. Citizens to Address the Village Board. 
 



  

May 12, 2015 Village Board Agenda 
 

17. Closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing 
of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; and, 

 Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 
litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. The topics are matters relating to the 
Village-Town Revenue Sharing Agreement and Cooperative Boundary Plan. 

 
Reconvene into Open Session. 

 
18. Adjourn. 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting 
should contact the Village Hall at least one (1) business day prior to the meeting. 



VILLAGE OF JACKSON DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FORM 
(Due 1st Friday of the month for that month’s Planning Commission Meeting) 

Name of Applicant___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Contact__________________________________Address/ZIP_____________________________________Phone #_____________________________________ 
E-mail Address_________________________________________ Fax # where Agenda/Staff comments are to be faxed __________________________________  
Name of Owner____________________________________Address/ZIP_____________________________________________Phone#_____________________ 
Owner Representative/Developer________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Proposed Use of Site______________________________________________________________________ Present Zoning  ______________________________ 

ACTION REQUESTED FEE SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS TYPE OF INFORMATION DESCRIBED  
 (See page 5) 

PAPER 
COPIES 

       CD  

CONCEPT PLAN $50 1,2,6,13 1) Complete Application (all pages) XXX 
2) Describe what you intend to do (paragraph) XXX 

CONDITIONAL USE $150 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,14,15,16,18,19,20 3) Address Labels of adjacent owners to be notified (500’/ 200’) labels 
4) Owner acknowledgement of the request 1 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT  $150 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,14,15,16,17,18,20 5) Impact Statement XXX 
6) Location Map XXX 

REZONING $200 1,2,(3),4,6,9 or 10 (500’for rezoning 7) Development Plan / Site Plan XXX 
200’ for Cond. Use or PUD Site Plan) 8)  Preliminary Plat XXX 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (CSM)  $150 1,2,6,10,20 9) Final Plat XXX 
10) Certified survey Map XXX 

MINOR SUBDIVISION $150 1,2,3,5,6,10,15,16,17,18,20 11) Annexation Petition XXX 
12) Annexation Map 1 XXX 

Extra-territorial Plat or CSM $150 1,2,6,9 / 10 13) Sketch Plan XXX 
14) Landscape Plan 4 (24x36) XXX 

Extra-territorial Plat outside 
Sanitary Service Area 

$50 1,2,6,9 / 10 Engineering Review - Infrastructure XXX 

15) Grading/Drainage Plan 4 (24x36) XXX 
PRELIMINARY PLAT $300 1,2,3,5,6,9,15,16,17,18 16) Water / Sewer / Storm Sewer Plans 4 (24x36) XXX 

17) Street / Right of Way cross sections 4 (24x36) XXX 
FINAL PLAT / Final Plat Reappl.. $100 1,2,3,5,6,9,15,16,17,18,20 18) Erosion Control Plan 4 (24x36) XXX 

19) Proposed colors / materials XXX 
ANNEXATION / ATTACHMENT $200 1,2,3,4,5,6,11,12,21 20) Developers Agreement XXX 

21) Annexation Agreement (includes pre-annex agreements) XXX 
STREET EASEMENT/ VACATION $150 1,2,3,4,6,9 22) other - XXX 

VARIANCE $150 1,2,3,4,6,7

I certify the information and exhibits submitted are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, and that in filing this application I am acting with knowledge and consent of those persons listed above and owner(s) without 
whose consent the requested action cannot be lawfully acted upon.  
Name _____________________________  Signature __________________________________________________________  Date _______________________

Office Use:  Date Received______________   Date Paid ________________  Receipt # __________________________  Amount Paid   $_______________________________

1

Don Nummerdor Don Nummerdor 4-3-15

Sign Effectz Inc. 
Don Nummerdor 1827 W. Glendale Av., Milwukee WI 53209 414-312-6985

414-312-6985donn@signeffectz.com
ABC Supply Co. Inc N174 W21221 Alcan Dr., Jackson WI 53037

Rodney Burzinski
Building material Supply



VILLAGE OF JACKSON 

    Special Use            Conditional Use            Planned Unit Development Permit #_______________ 

The Village of Jackson, hereby grants a            Special Use       Conditional Use        Planned Unit Development  

Permit to: 

Name of Business/Applicant: _____________________________________________________________________ 

For a property located at (address): _________________________________________________________________ 

Phone number of Business/Applicant: ______________________________________________________________ 

For (land use, activity, sign, site plan, other): _________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Impact Mitigation (noise, smoke, dust, odors, etc. affecting adjacent properties): ____________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Hours of Operation: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Comprehensive/Master Plan Compatibility: __________________________________________________________ 

Building Materials (type, color): ___________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Setbacks from rights-of-way and property lines: ______________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Screening/Buffering:  ___________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Landscape Plan (sizes, species, location): ____________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signing (dimensions, colors, lighting, location): ______________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Lighting (wattage, style, pole location and height, coverage): ____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Traffic flow, pedestrian circulation (curb to street width), (parking one/both/neither side(s), (sidewalk/pedestrian 
way width and material): _________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

N/A

N/A

existing

Ground sign is out of public right away

N/A

N/A

red white blue, see attached

N/A

existing

X

ABC Supply Co. /    Sign Effectz Inc -Don Nummerdor 

N174 W21221 Alcan Dr., Jackson WI 53037

Don Nummerdor - 414-312-6985 agent

Building and monument sign

N/A
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Storm-water Management: _______________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Erosion Control: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Fire Hydrant Location(s): ________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Knox Box, Posting Site (No Trespass signing), Emergency Telephone #’s: _________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Hazardous Material Storage: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Alarm Systems: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

Site Features/Constraints: ________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Parking (no. of spaces, handicapped parking, and dimensions): __________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Tree and shrub preservation: ______________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Setbacks/height limitations: ______________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Wastewater Usage Projected: __________gal/year         Water Usage Projected: __________gal/year 

Duration and Review of Conditional Use (expiration, when reviewed: upon complaint, specified period): 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NA

Existing

Don Nummerdor 414-312-6985 Sign 
Effectz

All signs will be out of public rite of way

existing

existing

existing

N/A N/A

continuous and reviewed upon complaint

N/A

N/A

existing
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TERMS OF THIS PERMIT 

1. This permit shall become effective upon the execution and recording by the owners of the premises of an
acceptance hereof in such form as to constitute an effective covenant running with the land.  

2. The permit shall be void unless: (a) pursuant to the Building and Zoning Codes of the Village, the approved
use is commenced or (b) the building permit is obtained within 12 months of the date of Village Board
approval.

3. The permit is subject to amendment and termination in accordance with the provisions of the Zoning Code of
the Village of Jackson.

4. Construction and operation of the use permit shall be in strict conformity to the approval site, building, and
operation plans which were filed in connection with the application for this permit (as attached and /or
referenced).

5. Any of the conditions of this permit which would normally be the responsibility of the tenants of the premises,
shall be made a part of their lease by the owner.

Granted by:  Village Board _______Date _________Over the Counter ________Date ________ 

______________________________________ __________________________________ 
John M. Walther, Administrator 

________________________________,
Please print name    

Agent

Don Nummerdor
Don Nummerdor 



Applications shall be submitted by 4:00 PM of the first Friday of the month to be considered by the Planning Commission that 
month.  In some cases, more than the number of copies on the face of this form will be required.  Only complete applications 
shall be presented to the Planning Commission and the Village Board for action.  Applications submitted without a pre-
submittal conference risk delay by being incomplete. 

The Planning Commission meets on the last Thursday of each month unless there is a conflict with a holiday.  The Village 
Board meets on the second Tuesday of each month, and will conduct a public hearing.  A decision on the request could be 
made at that meeting. 

EXPLANATION OF TYPES OF INFORMATION (from face of application form): 

1. Application Form: Must be submitted on CD.
2. Letter of Intent: What you are requesting in your own words. (Be brief)
3 Mailing Labels: It is your responsibility to provide the Village with current owner addresses.  If mailed notification is required for

your application, an incorrect address may cause you a delay.
4. Proof of Property Ownership: a copy of a deed, tax notice, title insurance policy (first page), recorded plat, etc.
5.  Impact Statement: In general, the following points represent most of the topics to be addressed in the impact statement.  Specific

points will be designated at the pre-submittal conference by staff.

A. Annual water consumption estimate (100% occupancy and build-out) 
B. Annual sewage generation estimate (100% occupancy and build-out) 
C. Vehicle trip generation (trips per day per unit x number of units) 
D. Estimated numbers of vehicles and recreational vehicles to be stored and/or parked on site. 
E. Proposed sign(s) (advertising business, industry, dwelling unit) 

 F. General hours of operation 
G. Anticipated User profiles (for residential developments) 
H. Proposed dates of construction and completion 
 I. Unusual conditions which warrant special attention (hazardous materials storage, fire hazards, odors, noise generation, 

etc.) 

6. Location Map: Show where the site is relative to a Village map.
7. Development Plan: Shows entire proposal on the site. Includes edge of pavement and/or back of curb line, sidewalks (existing and

proposed), footprints of the structure, drives, parking spaces and fencing, locations of accessory uses, dimensions, etc.  Landscape
plans and Water/Sewer/Storm plans may be shown combined on this plan if the composition is easily read and understood.

8/9. Plat Map: Prints of the preliminary and final (recordable plat), with proper signature blocks. 
10. Certified Survey Map: A recordable instrument showing the legal and mapped description of the land division.
11. Annexation Petition/Attachment Request: Shows owner is supporting the annexation.
12. Annexation Map: A recordable map having the legal and mapped description of the parcel to be annexed.
13. Sketch Plan: An informal drawing depicting the proposal for discussion purposes.
14. Landscape Plan: Shows location, size, type, botanical name, and common name of proposed trees and shrubs.  Also calls out surface

treatments.  Shows walls, fences, and details.
15. Grading/Drainage Plan: Shows original and proposed grades and runoff calculations based on a 10-year storm.  Is usually combined

with a Storm Sewer Plan (storm sewer system, ditches, culverts, etc.)
16. Water/Sewer/Storm Sewer Plans: Shows size and location of proposed water mains and fire hydrants; size and location of the

proposed sanitary sewer collection system with gradient profiles and invert elevations; shows the proposed storm drainage system as
in 15.

17. Street Cross-Sections: Section shows curb, gutter, paving, and sidewalk relative to the right-of-way width.
18. Erosion Control Plan: A map of existing site conditions on a scale of at least 1 inch equals 100 feet showing the site, boundaries and

immediately adjacent areas which accurately identify site locations.
19. Proposed Colors and Materials: Submit samples of exterior colors and materials.
20. Improvement Agreement: An agreement between the developer and the Village determining park dedications and the responsibilities

for street, water, sewer, and the storm sewer improvements and extensions.
21. Annexation Agreement.

MEETINGS AT WHICH THE REQUEST IS BEING HEARD SHOULD BE ATTENDED  

BY THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE IN ORDER TO RESPOND TO  

QUESTIONS AND AVOID DELAYS IN THE APPROVAL PROCESS.
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See attached drawings

upon approval



VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
       “Small Town Living / World Class Technology”

BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE OF JACKSON 

Please Print        Permit # ____________________ 

Date _______________________ 

Owner ____________________________________ Phone _____________________________________ 

Street Address ________________________________________________________________________ 

City __________________________ State ___________________ Zip ___________________________ 

Project Address _______________________________________________________________________ 

City __________________________ State ___________________ Zip ___________________________ 

Contractor ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Contractor Address _____________________________________________________________________ 

Contractor License No. ______________ Qualifier License No. ______________ Phone No. __________________ 

**2 sets of plans for residential and 3 sets of plans for commercial** 

Type of Project ________________________________________________________________________ 

Size of Building (or remodeled area) _______________________________________________________ 

Cost of Project ________________________________________________________________________ 

Building Plat of Survey or Certified Survey Map (C.S.M.) 

Air Conditioner – Tons ____________________________ # of Units ____________________________ 

Furnace – BTU’s _________________________________ # of Units ____________________________ 

*************** FOR OFFICE USE ONLY *************** 

Permit Fee ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address   N168 W20733 Main Street Phone: (262) 677-9696 

P.O. Box 637 Jackson, Wisconsin  53037 Fax:     (262) 677-9710 

3-31-15

ABC Supply

N174 W21221 Alcan Dr

Jackson WI 53037

N174 W21221 Alcan Dr

Jackson WI 53037

Sign Effectz Inc - Don Nummerdor

1827 W. Glendale Av., Milwaukee WI 53209

1016181 414-312-6985

Signs



























chaput land surveys llc

234 w. florida street
milwaukee, wi 53204
414-224-8068
www.chaputlandsurveys.com

Drawing No. 1943-tjn

TO: Investors Associated, LLP, a Wisconsin Limited Liability Partnership
Fidelity National Title Company

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance
with the 2011 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys, jointly
established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 6(a), 6(b), 7(a), 7(b1), 7(b2), 8, 9,
10(a), 11(b), 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20(a), 20(b) and 21 of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on
March 20, 2015.

Date of Map: March 25, 2015
Donald C. Chaput
Professional Land Surveyor

           Registration Number S-1316

PLAT  OF  SURVEY

I Certify that I have surveyed the above described property (Property), and the above map is correct to the best of
my professional knowledge and belief and shows the size and location of the Property, its exterior boundaries, the location and
dimensions of all visible structures thereon, boundary fences, apparent easements and roadways and visible encroachments, if
any. This survey is made for the exclusive use of the present owners of the Property, and also those who purchase, mortgage,
or guarantee the title thereto, within one (1) year from date hereof.

Date: February 22, 2013
Donald C. Chaput
Professional Land Surveyor

           Registration Number S-1316

SITE

LAND  TITLE  SURVEY
ALTA/ACSM
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lEGAL DESCRIPTION
Lot One (1) of Certified Survey Map No. 6056, recorded in Washington County Registry on July 18, 2006 in
Volume 45 of Certified Survey Maps on Pages 63 - 65, as Document No. 1133163, being a part of the NE 1/4 -
NW 1/4, part of the SE 1/4 - NW 1/4, part of the NW 1/4 - NE 1/4, and part of the SW 1/4 - NE 1/4 of Section 18,
T10N, R20E, Village of Jackson, County of Washington, State of Wisconsin, being a subdivision of Lot 2 of
Certified Survey Map No. 5799 Volume 42, page 212, and an access easement being part of Lot 1 of Certified
Survey Map No. 5358 Volume 38, Page 61.

flood note
According to the flood insurance rate map of the County of Washington, Community Panel No. 55131C0258D,
effective date of November 20, 2013, this site falls in Zone X (Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual
chance floodplain).

BASIS OF BEARINGS
Bearings are referenced to the Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate System (South Zone), in which the East line of
the NW 1 /4 of Section 18-10-20, which bears S00°39'39"E.

PARKING SPACES
There are 6 regular parking spaces and 1 handicap space marked on this site.

lAND AREA
The Land Area of the subject property is 175,152 square feet or 4.021 acres.

TABLE "A" ITEMS

10(a)(b). There was no observable evidence of division or party walls at the time of survey.
11(b). Utility lines are shown from visible surface evidence, municipal plans and from plans and markings provided

by Diggers Hotline, the One-call Utility Marking System (Wisconsin Statute 182.0175).
15.  Available Rectified orthophotography from Washington County Wisconsin is dated 2010. Therefore it is not

current.
16. There is no visible evidence of earth moving, building construction or building additions within recent months.
17. There are no changes in street right of way lines either completed or proposed, and available from the

controlling jurisdiction. Observable evidence of recent street or sidewalk construction or repairs if any, is
shown.

18. There is no observable evidence of site use as a solid waste dump or sanitary landfill.
19. There is no evidence on site of delineated wetlands areas .
20(a). There were no offsite easements or servitudes benefiting the survey property disclosed in furnished Title 

Commitment at the time of survey.

TITLE COMMITMENT
This survey was prepared based on Fidelity National Title  Company Commitment No. MTX 23366, effective date
of February 10, 2015 which lists the following easements and/or restrictions from schedule B-II:

6, 7, 8 & 16 visible evidence shown, if any.

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 17, 18, 19 & 20 not survey related.

10. Distribution Easement Underground Joint to Wisconsin Electric Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation
doing business as WE Energies and Wisconsin Bell, Inc., d/b/a SBC Ameritech ﻿Wisconsin recorded
November 4, 2002 as Document No. 955922. Affects site by location, shown.

11. Distribution Easement Underground Joint to Wisconsin Electric Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation
doing business as WE Energies and Wisconsin Bell, Inc., d/b/a SBC Ameritech Wisconsin recorded 
November 4, 2002 as Document No. 955923. Affects site by location, shown.

12. Distribution Easement Underground Joint to Wisconsin Electric Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation
doing business as WE Energies and Wisconsin Bell, Inc., d/b/a SBe Wisconsin, a Wisconsin Corporation and
Marcus Cable Partners, L.L.C., dba Charter Communications recorded September 22, 2005 as Document
No. 1102831. Affects site by location, shown.

13. 20' Utility Easement as disclosed on CSM 6056. Affects site by location, shown.

14. Distribution Easement Underground to Wisconsin Electric Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation doing
business as WE Energies recorded on October 18, 2010 as Document No. 1261853. Affects site by
location, shown.

15. Covenants, conditions, and restrictions as contained in Subordination, Nondisturbance and Attornment
Agreement recorded January 23,2015, as Document No. 1374389. Affects site by location.

MUNICIPAL ZONING
Site is zoned: PUD (Planned Development) - per Village of Jackson
Front setback: 25 feet
Side setback: 8 feet
Rear setback: 25 feet

note:
Site was snow covered at time of survey.

sITE ADDRESS
N174 W21221 Alcan Drive, Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin.

CLIENT
Investors Associated

LINE TABLE CURVE  DATA

flood note
According to the flood insurance rate map of the County of Waukesha, Community Panel No.
55133C0038F, effective date of November 19, 2008, this site falls in Zone AE (Base Flood Elevations
determined).

ENCROACHMENT  TABLE

Horizontal datum is based on the Wisconsin State Plane
Coordinate System Grid, South zone (NAD-27)

Vertical datum is based on National Geodetic Vertical
Datum of 1929.

REVISION   TABLE

ENCROACHMENT  TABLE















NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"4

EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"3

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"2

WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"1

PHONE 262.677.9933

info@design2construct.com

FAX 262.677.9934

JACKSON, WI 53037

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS

PROJECT DATA

DATE

JOB NO.

SET USE

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

SHEET NO.

N173 W21010

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

G2-A4.0

RWL

A4.0

P.C. SUBMITTAL

13-00227

04.08.2015
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info@design2construct.com

FAX 262.677.9934

JACKSON, WI 53037

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS
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JOB NO.

SET USE

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

SHEET NO.

N173 W21010

TITLE SHEET

A1-TS
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TS

QUAM ENGINEERING
544 S. MAIN, SUITE B
WEST BEND, WI 53095
KEVIN PARISH
kjparish@sbcglobal.net
OFF: (262) 338-6641
FAX: (262) 338-6684

SHEET INDEX:

PHONE (262) 677-9933

N173 W21010

FAX (262) 677-9934

NORTHWEST PASSAGE WAY

CONSTRUCTION

DESIGN

PROJECT CONTACTS
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:JACKSON, WI 53037

PROJECT MANAGER

SEAL

DATE

PROJECT NO.

ARCHITECTCIVIL CONSULTANT

STRUCTURAL CONSULTANT

PROJECT DATA:

BRAD EGAN

TODD OPGENORTH

13-00225

04.08.2015

TYPE IIB
ONE

PROPOSED

44,130 SF
5,870 SF

TOTAL: 50,000 SF
ALLOWABLE

15,500 SF
0 SF

46,500 SF
TOTAL: 62,000 SF

NO. OF EMPLOYEES: 30

INDUSTRIAL (100 SF/OCC.): 441 OCC
BUSINESS (100 SF/OCC.): 59 OCC
TOTAL: 500 OCC

REQUIRED: 100
PROVIDED: 180

250'

EXIT WIDTH (.2" PER OCCUPANT):

EXIT DISTANCES:
FACTORY (WORST CASE):

2009 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE

SPRINKLER SYS. (NFPA-13)

MANUFACTRING WITH
ASSOCIATED BUSINESS AREAS

NONE: NON-SEPARATED USES

FACTORY (WORST CASE):
FRONTAGE INCREASE:
SPRINKLER INCREASE:

OCCUPANCY SEPARATIONS:

OCCUPANCIES:

BUILDING CODE:

NO. OF STORIES:
BUILDING IS:

BUILDING TYPE:

FACTORY
BUSINESS:

METHOD USED

(72" MINIMUM)

OCCUPANT LOAD:
(4W / 26M)

AREAS (GROSS):

CLASS OF CONSTRUCTION:

AREAS (GROSS):

BUSINESS: B
FACTORY INDUSTRIAL F-1

TS TITLE SHEET

CIVIL DRAWINGS
C-101 EXISTING SITE

C-102 GRADING PLAN

C-103 UTILITY PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL
A1.0 SITE / LANDSCAPE PLAN

A2.1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

A4.0 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

P.C. SUBMITTAL

13-00227

04.08.2015



FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"1

ENLARGED OFFICE PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"2

PHONE 262.677.9933

info@design2construct.com

FAX 262.677.9934

JACKSON, WI 53037

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS

PROJECT DATA

DATE

JOB NO.

SET USE

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

SHEET NO.

N173 W21010

FLOOR PLAN &

ENLARGED OFFICE PLAN

E4-A2.1B

BW

A2.1

P.C. SUBMITTAL

13-00227

04.08.2015

AREA = 5,924 SF
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SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 30'-0"1

BUILDING
FOOTPRINT
SHOP:     44,130 S.F.
OFFICE:    5,870 S.F.
 TOTAL:  50,000 S.F.

(35) 10'x18' PARKING STALLS
INCL. (2) FOR HANDICAP

A
LC

A
N

 C
O

U
R

T

CEDAR CREEK ROAD

FUTURE SHOP
ADDITION
30,000 S.F.

S
0

1
°0

5
'1

5
"W

  
  

37
7 .

43
'

S89°54'26"W    370.91'N88°38'33"W    114.16'

S88°54'45"E    382.60'

S88°38'21"E    189.16'

N
0

0
°3

9
'3

9
"W

  
  

31
5.

23
'

L=115.47'

R
=75.00'

C
HO

RD
 LNG

TH=104.40'

C
HIO

R
D BR

G
=S46°33'18"E

CONCRETE APRON
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"3

SIDEWALK CURB
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"4

LOCATION PLAN
NOT TO SCALE2

PHONE 262.677.9933

info@design2construct.com

FAX 262.677.9934

JACKSON, WI 53037

SHEET TITLE

REVISIONS

PROJECT DATA

DATE

JOB NO.

SET USE

FILE NAME

DRAWN BY

SHEET NO.

N173 W21010

SITE PLAN

LANDSCAPE PLAN

C1-A1.0

BCE

A1.0

P.C. SUBMITTAL

13-00227

04.08.2015

PLANT  SCHEDULE 
 
KEY QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME 

PLANT SIZE 
ROOTS 

MATURE AT PLANTING 
 

D1 4 BETULA PAPYRIFERA BIRCH, PAPER 40’ 3 BRANCH 
CLUMP 

B & B 

       
E1 3 JUNIPERUS SCOPULORUM JUNIPER, ROCKY MOUNTAIN - 
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6 – 15’ 2-1/2” CAL. B & B 

       
S1 18 SPIRACA BUMALDA SPIREA, GOLDMOUND 2 – 3’ 12 – 18” HIGH POT 
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1. Planned Unit Development - ABC Supply Company – Alcan Drive. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 A separate Sign Permit will be required for the installation of the signs 
 

Public Works/Engineering 
 

 No comments. 
 

Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 
 No comments. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 Recommend approval. 

 
 

2. Planned Unit Development - RJ Wood Industries – Alcan Court. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 State of Wisconsin Plan Review will be required due to the building size.   
 Building shall be fully sprinklered 
 A dumpster enclosure will be required around the dumpsters.  Where will this be 

located? 
 Provide Material Safety Data Sheets and total quantities of stain, varnish, paint that will 

be stored on site.   
 A saw dust exhaust system will be required for the saw cutting operations.  Provide 

proper HVAC system (intake/exhaust) for stain, varnish, and painting operation areas.  
A separate HVAC Plan review will required from the State of Wisconsin.   

 No signs were submitted with this submittal.  All future signs shall require a separate 
Village Board Approvals. 

 No outside storage shall be permitted  
 

Public Works/Engineering 
 

 The proposed storm water discharge system as designed will have storm water discharge to 
the Village’s regional storm water pond for water quality and quantity requirements. 

 A sampling manhole shall be installed on the sanitary sewer lateral. 
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 A detail showing the water service connection and relocating the hydrant shall be submitted. 
 One REU (residential equivalent unit) will be charge for the sewer connection fee and water 

impact fee.  An annual review will determine if additional REUs are necessary. 
 Trash and recycling collection will be the responsibility of the property owner.  Please show 

on the plan where the containers will be located. 
 As a TIF expense, the Village of Jackson will complete the street lighting system for Alcan 

Court.     
 
Police Department 
 

 No comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 
 If required, all Fire Protection Systems shall be installed per the applicable national, 

state and local codes. 
 A Knox Box Entry system shall be installed per village code. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 No additional comments. 

 
 

3. Planned Unit Development - Delany Group LLC – Alcan Drive. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 Plan specifies a Type VB Building allowing wood to be used in interior and exterior 
areas of the building. Detail shows Masonry.  Should this be a Type IIB Building? 

 State of Wisconsin Plan Review will be required due to building size. 
 Building shall be fully sprinklered due to the size of the building. 
 Floor plan lists two company names on the plan.  B&L Copies is currently located in 

the Village.  What type of business is WESCO?  A Separate Approval will be required 
per the PUD Zoning for the business uses. 

 A dumpster enclosure will be required around the dumpsters.  Where will this be 
located? 

 No outside storage shall be permitted  
 

Public Works/Engineering 
 

 The proposed storm water discharge system as designed will have storm water discharge to 
the Village’s regional storm water pond for water quality and quantity requirements.  A 
drainage plan shall be submitted along with the building permit application. 

 A sampling manhole shall be installed on the sanitary sewer lateral. 
 A detail showing the water service connection and relocating the hydrant shall be submitted. 
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 One REU (residential equivalent unit) will be charge for the sewer connection fee and water 
impact fee.  An annual review will determine if additional REUs are necessary. 

 Trash and recycling collection will be the responsibility of the property owner.  Please show 
on the plan where the containers will be located. 

 As a TIF expense, the Village of Jackson will complete the street lighting system for Alcan 
Drive and Northwest Passage. 

 The proposed plan has parking in the required front setback.  The setback is large enough to 
allow the parking, although, a landscape plan shall be submitted to create a buffer between 
the parking lot and Northwest Passage.  The landscape plan shall contain street trees planted 
with a 60 ft separation along Northwest Passage and Alcan Drive.  

 
Police Department 

 
 No comments. 

 
Fire Department 

 
 If required, all Fire Protection Systems shall be installed per the applicable national, 

state and local codes. 
 A Knox Box Entry system shall be installed per village code. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 
 No additional comments. 

 
 
4. Concept Plan – The Laser Shop – Industrial Drive. 
 

Building Inspection 
 

 Current zoning for this property is M-1 (Limited Manufacturing District).  Proposed use 
of this vacant area does not comply with the current zoning.  If the Board does allow 
storage to occur, recommend a sunset date to be set (example: review it in 3 years and 
see where the business is in relation to their building expansion). 

 
Public Works/Engineering 

 

 The zoning for the property is M – 1 Limited Manufacturing District intended to provide for 
manufacturing, industrial, and related uses.  Site plan approvals for the zoning usually 
restricted property owners from outside storage or equipment or material.  Recommend 
denial of the concept plan request. 

 The zoning for the property is for manufacturing and not outside storage.  All proposed plan 
reviews with M-1 zoning are encouraged to have all storage inside the building and limit 
outside storage.  Recommend denial of the concept plan. 
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Police Department 

 

 No additional comments. 
 
Fire Department 

 

 A Knox Box Entry system shall be installed for the gate in a location to be determined 
by the fire department. 

 
Administrative/Planning 

 

 This area is in TID #2 and is zoned M1-Limited Manufacturing, and therefore non-
compliant with the district 

 Recommend denial of the concept.  
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DRAFT MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING  
Thursday – April 30, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main St 
Jackson, WI  53037 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call. 
Chairperson Mike Schwab called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Members present:  Tr. Kruepke, Steve Schoen, Peter Habel, and Jeff Dalton.  
Not Present:  Doug Alfke, Tr. Emmrich 
Staff Present: John Walther, Brian Kober, Jim Micech. 
 

2. Minutes – March 26, 2015, Plan Commission Meeting. 
Motion by Peter Habel, second by Steve Schoen to approve the minutes of the March 26, 
2015, Plan Commission meeting with correction.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

3. Planned Unit Development – ABC Supply Co. – Sign on Alcan Drive. 
Don Nummerdor was present.  Motion by Peter Habel, second by Tr. Kruepke, to 
recommend approval of the Planned Unit Development ABC Supply Co. – Sign on Alcan 
Drive subject to staff comments.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

4. Planned Unit Development – RJ Wood – Alcan Court. 
 
Brad Egan was present and had received staff comments.  Motion by Peter Habel, second 
by Jeff Dalton, to recommend approval of the Planned Unit Development – RJ Wood – 
Alcan Court subject to staff comments. Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

5. Planned Unit Development – Delaney Group LLC – Alcan Drive. 
 
Brad Egan was present and had received staff comments.  Motion by Peter Habel, second 
by Steve Schoen, to recommend approval of the Planned Unit Development – Delaney 
Group LLC – Alcan Drive subject to staff comments.   
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

6. Concept Plan – The Laser Shop – Industrial Drive. 
 
John Walther commented that the owner requested that this item be deferred to the next 
Plan Commission meeting due to the person giving the presentation has pneumonia.  
Motion by Jeff Dalton, second by Peter to defer the item to the next Plan Commission 
Meeting.  Brian Kober commented that staff is recommending denial.  This item is not 
per the zoning.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

7. Citizens to address the Plan Commission. 
Tr. Kruepke questioned if enclosures were required around the dumpsters at the industrial 
park.  Brian Kober commented enclosures are required per the Village Code depending 
on when they came into the Village.    
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8. Adjourn. 
 A motion was made by Peter Habel, second by Tr. Jeff Dalton to adjourn at  
 7:14 p.m. 

Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Deanna L. Boldrey – Clerk/Treasurer. 
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DRAFT Minutes 
Special Village Board Meeting 
TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2015 at 7:30PM 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168 W20733 Main Street 
 
1. Call To Order & Roll Call 
 

John Walther, the Village Administrator, called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
Members present: Pres. Schwab, Trustee Olson, Trustee Lippold, Trustee Kufahl, and Trustee 
Kruepke. 
Members absent: Trustee Mittelsteadt and Trustee Emmrich (both excused). 
Staff present: John Walther, Jim Micech, Brian Kober, Chief Dolnick, and Chief Skodinski.  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 John Walther led the room in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
3.  Administration of Oath of Office to Village President and Trustees. 

 Clerk Deanna Boldrey administered the oath of office to President Schwab.   
 President Schwab then took his seat at the dais.    
 Trustee Lippold and Trustee Olson then took their oaths of office. 
 

4. Resolution #15-05, Resolution of Appreciation of Service to Wendy A. Kannenberg. 
 
  Administrator John Walther read Resolution #15-05.  Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr.   
  Lippold to approve Resolution #15-05, Resolution of Appreciation of Service to Wendy A.   
  Kannenberg.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
5. Resolution #15-06, Resolution Proclaiming Arbor Day in the Village of  Jackson. 
 
  John Walther read Resolution #15-06.  Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Olson to    
  approve Resolution #15-06, Resolution Proclaiming Arbor Day in the Village of Jackson.    
  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
6. Receipt of Village Board Informational Binder. 

 
Clerk Boldrey distributed new information for each binder.  Pres. Schwab received a new binder.   
Each binder contained a memo of information to the board regarding open meetings law 
information, state statute 946.13, parliamentary procedure information, and copies of recent village 
town agreements, Intergovernmental Agreement, development agreement, Pre-Development 
Reimbursement Agreement, and Development & Reimbursement Agreement.  She pointed out 
information on quorum and caution with regard to emails.     

 
7. Comments by the Village President. 

 
President Schwab gave comments.  He stated that it is an honor to be elected in any position.  He 
commented it is an honor to serve with those elected at the dais and that he looks forward to 
working with staff.   

 
8. Comments by the Trustees. 

 
Trustee Lippold commented that the challenges facing the community are growing.  He 
commented congratulations to those elected and re-elected.   
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Trustee Olson commented that he is honored and humbled to have been re-elected.  He continued 
that the challenges are the largest since he has been a resident.  He thanked those for attending the 
meeting.  
 
Trustee Kruepke commented that he remembered the first time he sat on the board in 1976.  The 
problems from then to now are not much different in magnitude than today.  In 1976 the Town and 
Village did not get along but they did work through it.  He stated that there has been a positive 
movement of the board’s relationship to the public and staff.  
 
Trustee Kufahl commented that there is always something major to work on.  The staff is great.  
He thanked those that come to the meetings.  He commented congratulations to those on the board. 
 

9. Comments by Village Staff. 
 

Police Chief Jed Dolnick thanked the members of the board for stepping up and running for office.   
 
Deanna Boldrey congratulated those that are re-elected and newly elected.  She looks forward to 
working with the board and appreciates being a part of the group. 
 
Brian Kober commented that both Kelli Valentino and Jim Micech send their congratulations.  
Brian commented that he is excited and delighted to hear the commitment that the board has.  He 
commented that staff is here to guide you with information.  Brian noted a list of upcoming items:  
Georgetown Drive Construction Project, Shared Use Path, Storm Water Grant and General Permit, 
Cranberry Creek Phase 4 Development, Sidewalk Project, Water Utility Painting of the Tower, 
Completion of the water expansion project, Flex – Net Radios, Well #5 inspection, Flushing of 
System, Completion of the Digester Project, TMDL Mid Moraine Collective Group, Lift Station 
Communication, and Computer Upgrades.   
 
Fire Chief John Skodinski was called out on an emergency. 
 
John Walther urged the trustees to attend committee meetings.  He commented on the challenge of 
the lawsuit that is taking up a lot of time.       
 

10. Committee Member Appointments and Administration of Oaths of Office. 
 

Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Kufahl to appoint Beau Flitter to the Joint Parks 
and Recreation Committee.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Kufahl to appoint Trustee Olson, Corinne 
Benson, Brian Heckendorf, and Trustee Lippold to the Board of Public Works.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 
nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Olson to appoint Trustee Kruepke and Trustee 
Kufahl to the Personnel Committee.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Olson to appoint Steve Guild to the Zoning Board 
of Appeals.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Lippold to appoint Trustee Kufahl and Trustee 
Olson to the Budget and Finance Committee.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
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Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Olson to appoint Trustee Mittelsteadt to the Mid-
Moraine Legislative Group.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Trustee Kufahl, second by Trustee Kruepke to appoint President Schwab as the School 
District Liason.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Lippold to appoint Doug Alfke and Jeff Blau to 
the Community Development Authority.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by President Schwab, second by Trustee Olson to appoint Trustee Emmrich to the Plan 
Commission.  Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  (Clerk’s Note:  Trustee Lippold’s name was 
read in error.) 

 
11. Adjourn. 

 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Olson to adjourn at 8:02 p.m.   
Vote: 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by Deanna L. Boldrey, Clerk/Treasurer 
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DRAFT MINUTES 
Village Board Meeting  
Tuesday, April 14, 2015, at 7:30 p.m.  
Jackson Village Hall  
N168W20733 Main Street  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

 

President Wendy Kannenberg called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
Members Present: Trustees Kufahl, Mittelsteadt, Lippold, Olson, Emmrich, and Kruepke. 
Members Absent:  None. 

 Staff present: John Walther, Brian Kober, Jim Micech, Chief Jed Dolnick, Chief John 
Skodinski, Mike Schwab. 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

President Kannenberg led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of March 10, 2015. 

 

Motion by Tr. Emmrich, second by Tr. Olson to approve the minutes of March 10, 2015.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  

 
4. Any Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item. 
 

None. 
 

5. Public Hearing Planned Unit Development Amendment – Coffeeville Company LLC,  
 Main Street. 
 

Pres. Kannenberg opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke.  Pres. Kannenberg closed the 
Public Hearing.  The Plan Commission had previously recommended approval of the item.   
Jack Kulwikowski and Jack (John) Heisler were present.  Jack Heisler presented information 
and pictures on the planned unit development.  The building has historical value as the 
structure was built in 1840-1850.  The existing building is a former residential farm house 
that was a log home.  It is a log home all the way through.  The logs have been sandblasted 
and the concrete will be replaced.  The siding will be removed and replaced with to 2 ½ - 3 
inch siding that is from the victorian era.  The color samples were viewed.  The site plan was 
reviewed.  This is a two story setting with a fire place and balconies.  The logs will be 
exposed on the inside.  The asbestos siding will be removed and it is unknown what is 
underneath.  They will try to keep the large trees.  They are meeting with the DOT in 
regards to the entrance and exit.   The dumpsters will be enclosed.  Jack Heisler reviewed 
the entrances and drive through.  There will be areas for outside seating.   
  
The southeast area of the site will have four kiosks that are 525 square feet each.  They will 
be 20 feet apart with walkways.  The kiosks are for artisan sales of items made locally.  The 
kiosks are phase two.   
 
The Coffeeville Company LLC will be specialty coffee, retails sales, and light food items.  
The coffee will be custom roasted.   
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Samples of shingles were also shown.  The shingles will be the same on the kiosks.   
The kiosk buildings will be of different colors but the roof colors will be the same.   
 
The Coffeeville Company, LLC plan to open in August 2015.    
 
Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Planned Unit Development of 
Coffeeville Company LLC on Main Street Subject to staff comments. 
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  

 

6. Public Hearings Planned Unit Development Amendment – CNR, Alcan Drive. 
 

Pres. Kannenberg opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke.  Pres. Kannenberg closed the 
Public Hearing.  The item came from Plan Commission with recommendation of approval.   
Brad Egan was present and had received staff comments.   
Motion by Tr. Emmrich, second by Tr. Olson to approve the Planned Unit Development 
Amendment – CNR Alcan Drive Subject to Staff Comments.   
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  

 

7. Budget & Finance Committee. 
 

 Pay Request #3 – Digester Improvement Project. 
 

This item was recommended from the Board of Public Works and the Budget and Finance 
Committee.   The amount is $26,133.55.  Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Tr. Olson to 
approve the Pay Request #3 – Digester Improvement Project.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 

 Resolution #15-04 – Amending the 2015 Emergency Medical Service Fee Schedule. 
 

The Resolution was recommended from the Budget and Finance Committee.  Motion by Tr. 
Olson, second by Tr. Lippold to approve Resolution #15-04 – Amending the 2015 
Emergency Medical Service Fee Schedule.   
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 

 Washington County WI EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant. 
 

John Walther introduced information on the Brownfield Assessment Grant.  The item was 
discussed at Plan Commission and the Budget & Finance Committee recommended 
Approval for the Administrator to Authorize and Submit the Memorandum of Agreement.   
Deb Silskei, the Washington County Director of Parks and Planning, was present.   
John Walther reported that in 2013 the County established a partnership with EDWOC.  In 
January of 2014 the Village Board approved the membership in the Washington County Site 
Revitalization Coalition and Support for EPA Application and $600,000 in Brownfield 
Assessment Funds.  The coalition consists of Washington County as the primary partner 
with Economic Development Washington County, and the Cities of West Bend and 
Hartford, and the Villages of Jackson, Slinger and Richfield.  The County with partnership 
of the EDWOC applied for the $600,000 from the EPA to assess the brownfield sites within 
the coalition area for potential mitigation of contamination on certain sites.  All of the 
coalition partners need to sign the memorandum of agreement.  None of the funds will be 
expended until all of the memorandum of agreements are signed.  The sites will be 
prioritized.  Areas in the Village are south and north of Center Street.  This is just at the 
assessment stage to look for contamination and possible mitigation of the sites.  Deb 
commented that there is $600,000 from the EPA.  There are two parallel tracks of the funds.  
From the first portion of $200,000, $40,000 is set aside for the Village of Jackson.  The 
other $400,000 is a full blown inventory of known Brownfield sites and perceived 
Brownfield sites in Washington County.  The sites will be reviewed and prioritized based on 
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which have the best redevelopment potential.  This grant will take the projects to 
remediation.  This program has potential of growing through redevelopment of the sites. 
Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Emmrich to authorize the administrator to sign and 
submit the Memorandum of Agreement for the Washington County Wisconsin EPA 
Brownfield Assessment Grant.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 

 Budget Comparison Report. 
 

The Budget Comparison reports were reviewed and will be put file.  
 

8. Licenses. 
 

 Operator Licenses. 
 Walgreens:      Kathleen C. Mikic 
 Village Mart:  Megan Kloskey 

 
 Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Operator Licenses.   

 Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 

 Entertainment License. 
 Dale L. Sandberg – Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly – Jackson. 
 Carnival in Parking Lot May 8 & 9, 2015. 
 Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Entertainment License for 

Fox Brothers Piggly Wiggly.   
 Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 

9. Ordinance 15-02 - An Ordinance Rezoning W208 N16900 N. Center Street from  
 Manufacturing 1 (M1) to Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
 Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Olson to Approve Ordinance 15-02 - An Ordinance 
 Rezoning W208 N16900 N. Center Street from Manufacturing 1 (M1) to Planned Unit
 Development (PUD).    

Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 

10. Plan Commission. 
 Certified Survey Map – CNR, Alcan Drive. 

 Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Kruepke to Approve Ordinance 15-02 - An Ordinance 
 Rezoning W208 N16900 N. Center Street from Manufacturing 1 (M1) to Planned Unit
 Development (PUD).    

Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 

11. Board of Public Works. 
 2014 Consumer Confidence Report – Jackson Water Utility. 
 This item was recommended by the Board of Public Works.  Motion by Tr. Olson, second 
 by Tr. Lippold to Approve the 2014 Consumer Confidence Report.   

Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 
12. Washington County Board Report. 
 

 No Report.   
 
13. West Bend School District Liaison Report. 
  

No Report.   
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14. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report. 
 

 Tr. Mittelsteadt reported that the next general membership meeting will be on April 15, 
2015, at the Community Center.  Dahlberg Law Firm will give a presentation on estate 
planning and business exit plan. Ray Hoffman will give a presentation on Operation Finally 
Home.   

  
15.   Mid-Moraine Legislative Committee / Mid-Moraine Municipal Report. 
 

The committee met last Tuesday to develop the legislative agenda. The next dinner will be 
on May 27 at the Village of Belgium.   
 

16. Citizens to Address the Village Board. 
 
 John Walther showed a video of the Operation Finally Home. 
  
 Larry Hatke presented information on the Village’s Adopted Sidewalk Policy from 1991.   
  
 

17. Closed Session. 
 

The Village President announced that the Board intended to convene into Closed session 
pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and, 
Wis. Stats. § 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is 
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect 
to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. The topics are matters relating to 
the Village-Town Revenue Sharing Agreement and Cooperative Boundary Plan and the 
Jackson Water Distribution System Extension - Certificate of Substantial Completion No. 1. 

 

 Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Olson, to convene into closed session at 8:00 p.m. to 
include the Village Board, Brian Kober, Deanna Boldrey, Attorney St. Peter, and Village 
Pres. Elect Mike Schwab. 
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 
Reconvene Into Open Session. 
 

The Village Board convened into open session at 9:10 p.m. 
  
18.   Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Tr. Kufahl, second by Tr. Emmrich to adjourn at 9:11 p.m. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried.  
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted by Deanna L. Boldrey, Clerk/Treasurer 



RESOLUTION #15-08 
 
              
 

A RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION OF JAMES MICECH, 
RECIPIENT OF THE WISCONSIN BUILDING INSPECTORS ASSOCIATION 

2015 BUILDING INSPECTOR OF THE YEAR AWARD 
              
 
 
 THE VILLAGE BOARD of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin, 
does resolve as follows: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Jackson Area Community Residents have benefited from the Building 
Inspection and Code Enforcement Services that have been performed by James Micech; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to his roles as the Building Inspector and Code Enforcement for 
more than fifteen years, James Micech has served in the leadership role as the President of the 
Wisconsin Building Inspectors Association; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 24, 2015, James Micech was the recipient of the 2015 Inspector 
of the Year Award, the Highest Award bestowed by the Wisconsin Building Inspectors 
Association;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Board, the Employees and 
Citizens of the Village of Jackson, express their appreciation to James Micech for his Continued 
Public Service, Contributions, and Dedication to the Jackson Community, and congratulate him 
as the Recipient of the Wisconsin Building Inspectors Association 2015 Inspector of the Year 
Award. 
 
 
Introduced by:      Seconded by:      
 
Vote:   ayes  nays   Passed and Approved:     
 
        
             
       Michael E. Schwab – Village President 
 
 
Attest:       
 Deanna L. Boldrey – Village Clerk 
 
 
Proof of Posting: 
I, the undersigned, certify that I posted this Resolution on bulletin boards at the Village Hall, 
Post Office, and one other location in the Village. 
 
           
 Village Official     Date 



NAME Event
POLICE CHIEF 

RECOMMENDATION

Operator's License Application:

McHugh, Richard J. American Legion Approve

Bateman, Jennifer L. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Cardarelle, Jody A. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Fisher, Jodi A. (Roessler) Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Harry, Carla J. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Herbst, Kathleen J. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Herther, Ashley M. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Nettesheim, Susan E. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Rosbeck, Lynn D. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Ross, Therese Ann Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Schopp, Kelly A. Fox Bros. Piggly Wiggly Approve

Gyuro, Jessica Main Street Mart Approve

Harrison, Sarah J. Main Street Mart Approve

Hildebrandt, Pamela A. Main Street Mart Approve

Huttner, Melissa M. Main Street Mart Approve

Limbach, Julie Main Street Mart Approve

Spielvogel, Timothy G.  Jr. Main Street Mart Approve

Zasada, Tanya Main Street Mart Approve

Berger, Abbie Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Ford, Bonnie Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Gilmeister, Joseph Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Koutsios, Angela Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Kassner, Nichole Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Schlafer, Jessica Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Schultz, Laurel Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Seifert, Juliane Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Trainor, Esther Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Turner, Agnes Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Wolf, Bridget Jimmy's Restaurant and Bar Approve

Egerer, Debra A. Jackson Pub Approve

Hoppe, Susan E. Jackson Pub Approve

Kitner, Gregory A. Jackson Pub Approve

LaPine, Lisa Jackson Pub Approve

Meyer, Michelle L. Jackson Pub Approve

Miller, Jennifer R. Jackson Pub Approve

Reskiewicz, Amanda E. Jackson Pub Approve



Rice-Stefaniak, Jeri L. Jackson Pub Approve

Sauer, Christine L. Jackson Pub Approve

Zandi, Jon Jackson Pub Approve

Ancil, Jennifer Latest Edition Approve
Kulis, Jodi Latest Edition Approve
Nimkie, Dennis Latest Edition Approve
Nimkie, Martha Latest Edition Approve
Stoiber, Jessica A. Latest Edition Approve
Thetford, Brian Latest Edition Approve

Christian, Joan WalGreens Approve
Christian, Joy WalGreens Approve
Fechter, Kelly WalGreens Approve
Graff, Meghan WalGreens Approve
Hipenbecker, Julie WalGreens Approve
Lorge, Ann WalGreens Approve
Matasek, Jennifer WalGreens Approve
Nelson, Rachael WalGreens Approve
Oswald, Renata WalGreens Approve
Parker, Christopher WalGreens Approve
Patel Dipti WalGreens Approve
Schutts, Teresa WalGreens Approve
Rodenkirch, Michael WalGreens Approve
Scovill, Nelia WalGreens Approve
Seip, Mark WalGreens Approve
Taylor, Karly WalGreens Approve
Van Aacken, Robin WalGreens Approve

Larsh, Bryon East Side Mart Approve
Martin, Cassandra East Side Mart / Village Mart Approve
Meeks, Rebecca East Side Mart Approve
McAllister, Emily East Side Mart Approve
Mejaki, Brian East Side Mart Approve
Mitchell, Ashley East Side Mart Approve

Jackson, Shirley Village Mart Approve
Kloskey, Megan Village Mart Approve
Lehman, Lisa Village Mart Approve
Martin, Keith Village Mart Approve
Miner, Jennifer Village Mart Approve
Purgett, Carol Village Mart Approve
Rechlin, Rosemary Village Mart Approve
Wimer, Mariah Village Mart Approve



Wise, Melissa Village Mart Approve

Picnic License Application:
Jackson Festivals Inc. Action in Jackson 0612-0614 Approve

Entertainment License Application:
Jackson Festivals Inc. Action in Jackson 0612-0614 Approve
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 

 
To the Village Board 
Village of Jackson 
Jackson, Wisconsin 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Jackson, Wisconsin 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial 
statements as listed in table of contents, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
 
 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,  each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Jackson, Wisconsin as of December 31, 2014, and the 
respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the 
major special revenue funds for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic 
financial statements is not affected by the missing information. 
 
      
   
                           

  
May 13, 2015                                        JAMES R. FRECHETTE 
Mukwonago, WI                                                                             CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2014
 

Governmental Business-Type  
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS                       
 Current Assets:
   Cash and Investments $ 2,100,320 $ 5,552 $ 2,105,872
   Taxes Receivable 4,905,498 0 4,905,498
   Accounts Receivable 383,723 683,404 1,067,127
   Inventory and Prepayments 0 38,759 38,759
 Noncurrent Assets:
   Cash and Investments - Restricted 2,756,484 3,884,068 6,640,552
   Long-Term Advances 1,320,067 (1,320,067) 0
   Capital Assets 23,651,827 53,798,337 77,450,164
    Less: Accumulated Depreciation (7,009,884) (20,050,564) (27,060,448)
     Total Assets 28,108,035 37,039,489  65,147,524

                                                                     
LIABILITIES
  Current Liabilities:
     Accounts Payable 161,035 377,060 538,095
     Cash Overdraft 0 1,432,970 1,432,970
     Accrued Salaries and Benefits  85,198 5,711  90,909
     Accrued Interest Payable 47,029 14,445 61,474
     Notes and Bonds - Current 0 0 0
    Noncurrent Liabilities:
      Developer Agreement Payments 32,512 32,512
      Notes and Bonds Payable 16,726,965 3,162,657 19,889,622
      Total Liabilities 17,052,739 4,992,843 22,045,582

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
     Property Taxes 5,382,557 5,382,557
     Special Assessments 293,377 293,377
         Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,675,934 0 5,675,934
          Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 22,728,673 4,992,843 27,721,516
 
NET POSITION    
     Net Investment in Capital Assets (85,022) 30,585,116 30,500,094
     Restricted for:
       Debt Service 229,309 211,262 440,571
       Capital Projects 2,610,334 2,845,681 5,456,015
       Community Development Authority 402,253 0 402,253
       Park 46,834 0 46,834
       Police Impact Fees 122,506 0 122,506
       Equipment Replacement 0 827,126 827,126
     Unrestricted (Deficit) 2,053,148 (2,422,539) (369,391)
      Total Net Position $ 5,379,362 $ 32,046,646 $ 37,426,008
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page  3
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

 
 

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

Charges Operating Capital  Business-
for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
     General Government $ 617,506 $ 127,965 $ 0 $ 0 $ (489,541) $ 0 $ (489,541)
     Public Safety 2,074,541 492,972 281,619 53,577 (1,246,373) 0 (1,246,373)
     Public Works 1,273,327 53,049 274,367 473,150 (472,761) 0 (472,761)
     Culture and Recreation 675,308 211,817 75,959 26,169 (361,363) 0 (361,363)
     Conservation and Development 42,419 (42,419) 0 (42,419)
     Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,157,269 0 0 0 (1,157,269) 0 (1,157,269)
       Total Governmental Activities 5,840,370 885,803 631,945 552,896 (3,769,726) 0 (3,769,726)

Business-type Activities:
     Water 1,330,031 1,158,709 0 4,150,587 0 3,979,265 3,979,265
     Sewer 1,789,661 1,681,012 0 181,290 0 72,641 72,641
     Telecommunications  474,740  1,552  0  0  0  (473,188)  (473,188)
       Total Support Services 3,594,432 2,841,273 0 4,331,877 0 3,578,718 3,578,718

       Total Primary Government $ 9,434,802 $ 3,727,076 $ 631,945 $ 4,884,773 (3,769,726) 3,578,718 $ (191,008)

General Revenues:
Property Taxes 5,952,785 0 5,952,785
Mobile Home Fees 118,128 0 118,128
Motel/Hotel Room Tax 43,252 0 43,252
Payments In Lieu of Taxes 283,895 0 283,895
State Aids - Unrestricted 387,119 0 387,119
Interest on Investments 305 3,181 3,486
Rent 42,907 0 42,907
Miscellaneous 124,832 0 124,832

Transfers 0 0 0
   Total General Revenues and Transfers 6,953,223 3,181 6,956,404

Change in Net Position 3,183,497 3,581,899 6,765,396

Net Position - Beginning of Year 2,195,865 28,464,747 30,660,612
Net Position - End of Year $ 5,379,362 $ 32,046,646 $ 37,426,008

 
 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this report.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2014

 
Community                              

Capital Development Other Total 
General Debt Service Projects Authority Governmental Governmental

 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 1,211,373 $ 229,309 $ 0 $ 402,253 $ 257,385 $ 2,100,320
Taxes Receivable 1,564,772 1,766,047 1,390,206  184,473 4,905,498
Accounts Receivable 51,603  38,743 90,346
Special Assessments Receivable 293,377  293,377
Long-Term Advance 1,320,067  1,320,067
Cash and Investments - Restricted  122,506    2,633,978     2,756,484

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,563,698 $ 1,995,356 $ 4,024,184 $ 402,253 $ 480,601 $ 11,466,092

                                                                                                                                                               
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:    
 Accounts Payable $ 116,281 $ 0 $ 8,047 $ 0 $ 36,707 $ 161,035
 Accrued Salaries and Fringes 71,608 13,590 85,198
   

Total Liabilities 187,889 0 8,047 0 50,297  246,233

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
  Property Taxes 2,041,831 1,766,047 1,390,206 0 184,473 5,382,557
  Special Assessments 293,377 293,377

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,335,208 1,766,047 1,390,206 0 184,473  5,675,934

Fund Balances:
 Nonspendable:
    Advance to Telecommuncations Fund 1,320,067 1,320,067
 Restricted:   
    Debt Service 229,309  229,309
    Capital Projects 2,625,931  (15,597) 2,610,334
    Community Development Authority 402,253  402,253
    Police Impact Fees 122,506 122,506
    Park 46,834 46,834
 Assigned:
     Fire and Rescue 469,737 469,737
 Unassigned 598,028 (255,143) 342,885

                                                                                                                                                                  
Total Fund Balances 2,040,601 229,309 2,625,931 402,253 245,831 5,543,925

                                                                                                                                                                 
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 4,563,698 $ 1,995,356 $ 4,024,184 $ 402,253 $ 480,601 $ 11,466,092

                                                                                                                                             

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE

SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As Of December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net  
   position are different because:  
  
  Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 5,543,925

   Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
     resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. This includes:  
        Capital Assets 23,651,827
        Accumulated Depreciation (7,009,884)

   Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period                          
     and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. These include:  
       Notes and Bonds Payable (16,726,965)
       Developer Agreement Payments Payable (32,512)
       Accrued Interest on Long-Term Debt  (47,029)
       

   Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 5,379,362
   

                         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

                                                        Community    
Capital Development Other Total

General Debt Service Projects Authority Governmental Governmental
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES                                                              
Taxes $ 2,441,153 $ 1,526,094 $ 1,416,814 $ 864,819 $ 149,210 $ 6,398,090
Special Assessments 10,145  36,381 46,526
Intergovernmental 611,022 481,279 47,935 30,491 1,170,727
License and Permits 354,517 354,517
Forfeitures and Penalties 59,061 59,061
Public Charges for Services 180,617  432,666 613,283
Intergovernmental Charges for Services 598,359 598,359
Miscellaneous 59,901  163 112 60,176

                                                                                                            
TOTAL REVENUES  3,716,416 1,526,094 1,934,474 912,917 1,210,838 9,300,739

                                                                                                                                                        
EXPENDITURES
Current:        
 General Government  558,962 0 0 42,150 0 601,112
 Public Safety 1,649,916 554,687 2,204,603
 Public Works 902,429 902,429
 Culture and Recreation 160,332  412,953 573,285
Capital Outlay 51,655 26,823  65,685 144,163
Debt Service:  
 Principal 3,317,113 121,461 74,708  3,513,282
 Interest and Other 675,545 112,704 5,603  793,852

                                                                                                                                                            
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,323,294 3,992,658 260,988 122,461 1,033,325 8,732,726

                                                                                                                                                            
Excess of Revenues Over
 (Under) Expenditures 393,122 (2,466,564) 1,673,486 790,456 177,513 568,013
                                                                                                                                                        
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
 Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 0 3,025,000  0 0 3,025,000
 Payment to Refunding Escrow Agent (2,849,279) (2,849,279)
 Transfers In (Out) 2,349,542 (948,538) (1,285,329) (115,675) 0
                                      
Total Other Financing Sources
 (Uses) 0 2,525,263 (948,538) (1,285,329) (115,675) 175,721

                                                                                                                                                            
Net Change in Fund Balances 393,122 58,699 724,948 (494,873) 61,838 743,734

 
Fund Balances - Beginning 1,647,479 170,610 1,900,983 897,126 183,993 4,800,191
                                                                                                                                                             
Fund Balances - Ending $ 2,040,601 $ 229,309 $ 2,625,931 $ 402,253 $ 245,831 $ 5,543,925
                                                                                                        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of  
  activities are different because:  
  
   Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 743,734

    Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However,
     in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
     their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
             Capital Outlays 78,849
             Depreciation on Fixed Assets (613,230)

     The issuance of long-term debt is reported in the governmental funds
     as a other financing source, but has no effect on the statement of
     activities. (net of premium) (3,025,000)

     Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the                          
     governmental funds as an expenditure, but is recorded as a reduction  
     in long-term debt in the statement of net position and does not affect
     the statement of activities. These include:   
          Principal Paid on Long-Term Loans 5,988,283
  
     Payment of interest on long-term debt is reported in the governmental  
     funds as an expenditure when paid, but is recorded in the statement
     of activities as incurred.
          Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt 755,426
          Interest Incurred for the Year (744,565)

   Change in net position of governmental activities $ 3,183,497
   

                         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

 
For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Variance with
  Final Budget - 

Original Final Actual Positive
 Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES                                                                   
Taxes $ 2,390,099 $ 2,390,099 $ 2,441,153 $ 51,054
Special Assessments 9,860 9,860 10,145 285
Intergovernmental 604,919 604,919 611,022 6,103
License and Permits 203,060 203,060 354,517 151,457
Forfeitures and Penalties 76,205 76,205 59,061 (17,144)
Public Charges for Services 135,500 135,500 180,617 45,117
Miscellaneous 55,201 55,201 59,901 4,700

TOTAL REVENUES  3,474,844 3,474,844  3,716,416  241,572
                                                                                        

EXPENDITURES

Current:         
 General Government 653,156 653,156 558,962 94,194
 Public Safety 1,719,150 1,719,150 1,701,571 17,579
 Public Works 960,266 960,266 902,429 57,837
 Culture and Recreation 143,272 143,272 160,332 (17,060)
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,475,844 3,475,844 3,323,294 152,550

                                                                                      
Excess of Revenues Over
 (Under) Expenditures (1,000) (1,000) 393,122 394,122
                                                                                         
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
 Proceeds from Long-term Debt 0 0 0 0
 Operating Transfer In (Out) 0 0 0 0

                                                                                      
Total Other Financing
 Sources (Uses) 0 0 0 0

                                                                                       
Net Change in Fund Balances  (1,000) (1,000)  393,122  394,122

    
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,647,479 1,647,479 1,647,479 0
                                                                                       
Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,646,479 $ 1,646,479 $ 2,040,601 $ 394,122
                                                                   

 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activities - 
Enterprise Funds

 Tele-
Water Sewer Communications Totals
Utility Utility Utility Current Year

                      
ASSETS                       
 Current Assets:
   Cash and Investments $ 0 $ 0 $ 5,552 $ 5,552
   Accounts Receivable 295,056 388,348 0 683,404
   Inventory 38,759 38,759
       Total Current Assets 333,815 388,348 5,552 727,715

 Noncurrent Assets:    
   Cash and Investments 1,169,379 2,714,689 0 3,884,068
   Capital Assets 21,579,742 30,297,596 1,920,999 53,798,337
    Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,049,043) (14,080,522) (1,920,999) (20,050,564)
    Unamortized Debt Issuuance Costs 0 0 0
       Total Noncurrent Assets 18,700,078 18,931,763 0 37,631,841

                                                                                                           
     Total Assets  19,033,893  19,320,111  5,552  38,359,556

                                                                                                           
LIABILITIES
  Current Liabilities:
     Accounts Payable 59,310 40,520 130 99,960
     Cash Overdraft 546,933 886,037 1,432,970
     Accrued Salaries and Benefits  2,673 3,038  5,711
     Accrued Taxes Payable 277,100 277,100
 
       Total Current Liabilities 886,016 929,595 130 1,815,741

   Current Liabilities Payable from
    Restricted Assets:
      General Obligation Bonds Payable 0 0
      Clean Water Fund Loans Payable 0 0
      Revenue Bonds Payable 0 0 0
      Accrued Interest Payable 2,965 11,480 0 14,445
       Total Current Liabilities Payable
        from Restricted Assets 2,965 11,480 0 14,445

    Noncurrent Liabilities:
      General Obligation Bonds Payable 818,035 818,035
      Clean Water Fund Loans Payable 1,564,622 1,564,622
      Revenue Bonds Payable 478,848 301,152 780,000
       Long-Term Advance from General Fund 1,320,067 1,320,067
       Total Noncurrent Liabilities 478,848 2,683,809 1,320,067 4,482,724

                                                                                                           
      Total Liabilities 1,367,829 3,624,884 1,320,197 6,312,910

                                                                                                           
 
NET POSITION     
     Net Investment in Capital Assets 17,051,851 13,533,265 0 30,585,116
     Restricted for:
       Debt Service 133,515 77,747 211,262
       Capital Projects 1,035,864 1,809,817 2,845,681
       Equipment Replacement 827,126 827,126
     Unrestricted (555,166) (552,728) (1,314,645) (2,422,539)
     
      Total Net Position $ 17,666,064 $ 15,695,227 $ (1,314,645) $ 32,046,646
 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

  Tele-  
Water Sewer Communications

 Utility Utility Utility Totals
REVENUES                                                                             
  Charges for Services $ 1,082,253 $ 1,678,723 $ 1,552 $ 2,762,528
  Other Operating Revenues 76,456 2,289 0 78,745

                                                                                                 
   Total Operating Revenues  1,158,709 1,681,012 1,552  2,841,273

                                                                            
EXPENSES

  Operation and Maintenance  914,472 934,189 6,847  1,855,508
  Depreciation 396,497 766,464 467,893 1,630,854
   Total Operating Expenses 1,310,969 1,700,653 474,740 3,486,362

                                                                            
 
   Operating Income (152,260) (19,641) (473,188) (645,089)
                                                                           
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
   Interest on Investments 932 2,249 0 3,181
   Interest Expense (19,062) (89,008) 0 (108,070)
   Amortization Expense 0 0 0 0

 
                                                                                                    

 
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (18,130) (86,759) 0 (104,889)

                                                                                                    
Income Before Contributions and Transfers (170,390) (106,400) (473,188) (749,978)

  Capital Contributions/Impact Fees 4,150,587 181,290 0 4,331,877
  Transfers In (Out) 0 0 0 0

Change in Net Position  3,980,197 74,890 (473,188)  3,581,899
    

Net Position - Beginning 13,685,867 15,620,337 (841,457) 28,464,747
                                                                                                  
Net Position - Ending $ 17,666,064 $ 15,695,227 $ (1,314,645) $ 32,046,646
                                                     
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Tele-
Utility Utility Communications Totals

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
   Receipts from Customers $ 1,125,298 $ 1,688,461 $ 1,553 $ 2,815,312
   Net Payments to Village for Suppliers  
      and Payroll (857,903) (914,892) (2,591) (1,775,386)

     Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 267,395 773,569 (1,038) 1,039,926

Cash Flows From Noncapital
  Financing Activities:
   Transfer to Other Funds 0 0 0 0
   Transfer from Other Funds 0 0 0 0
     Net Cash Flows from Noncapital
      Related Financing Activities 0 0 0 0

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
 Financing Activities:
   Capital Contributions 151,700 181,290 0 332,990
   Purchases of Capital Assets (200,598) (90,340) 0 (290,938)
   Principal Paid on Capital Debt (107,434) (461,134) 0 (568,568)
   Interest Paid on Capital Debt (19,698) (91,327) 0 (111,025)

     Net Cash Flow from Capital and
      Related Financing Activities (176,030) (461,511) 0 (637,541)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
   Interest Income 932 2,249 0 3,181

     Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 932 2,249 0 3,181

   Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
    Cash Equivalents 92,297 314,307 (1,038) 405,566

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1 530,149 1,514,345 6,590 2,051,084

Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31$ 622,446 $ 1,828,652 $ 5,552 $ 2,456,650

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Tele-
Utility Utility Communications Totals

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
 Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
   Operating Income $ (152,260) $ (19,641) $ (473,188) $ (645,089)
  
   Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net  
    Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:  
      Depreciation Expense 412,438 766,464 467,893 1,646,795
      (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (33,410) 7,449 4,158 (21,803)
      (Increase) Decrease in Inventories/Prepayments (1,350) 0 0 (1,350)
      Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 47,728 18,641 99 66,468
      Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities (5,751) 656 0 (5,095)

       Total Adjustments 419,655 793,210 472,150 1,685,015
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 267,395 $ 773,569 $ (1,038) $ 1,039,926

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing
  Activities:
   Capital Outlay for Water Mains $ 3,998,887 $ 0 $ 0

 
 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2014

Agency
Funds

Tax
Collection

Fund

ASSETS
  Cash and Investments $ 6,145,193
  Taxes Recevable 0

6,145,193

LIABILITIES
  Due to Other Taxing Units $ 6,145,193

NET POSITION
  Net Position $ 0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The Village of Jackson, Wisconsin is a municipality governed by a village president and a six-member village 
board.  
 
The financial statements of the Village of Jackson have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the Village are described below: 
 
This report presents the village and its component units. Component units are entities for which the village is 
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in 
substance, part of the village’s operations. The Community Development Authority of the Village of Jackson is 
included in this report as a blended component unit and is reported as a major governmental fund.  
 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

Government-wide statements 
 

The Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and user charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those clearly identifiable with a specific function 
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 
 

Fund Financial statements 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental 
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements. 
The village reports the following major governmental and business-type funds: 
 

Governmental Funds 
General Fund is the village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the village, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation for and payment of all long-term obligations of the 
governmental funds except those accounted for specifically in other governmental funds. 
 
Community Development Authority accounts for the activities of the authority, which is a blended component 
unit of the village. Transactions related to Tax Incremental District No. 3 may be included in this fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund accounts for the activities involving borrowing for construction or purchase of capital 
assets. Transactions of Tax Incremental District’s No. 2, No. 3, No. 4, and No. 5 may also be included in this 
fund. 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 
Enterprise Funds 
Water Utility accounts for the activities of the village’s water system. 
 
Sewer Utility accounts for the activities of the village’s sewer system. 
 
Telecommunications Utility accounts for the activities of the village’s telecommunication projects. 

 
The Village also reports the following non-major governmental funds: 
 Park Fund         Recreation Fund     Fire and Rescue Fund 
 Tax Incremental District No. 5 
 
Additionally, the Village reports the following fund types that are not included in the government-wide financial 
statements: 

 
The Tax Collection Agency Fund accounts for assets received from taxpayers held for distribution to other 
taxing units. 
 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
 Government-wide statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Taxes 
receivable for the following year are recognized as receivables and deferred inflows of resources. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met.  
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the village’s water utility, sewer utility, and the 
village’s governmental activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program 
revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
 Fund financial statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures 
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

 
Property taxes, state aids, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to 
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion 
of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual 
as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when cash is received by the government. 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 
D.  Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 

 
Deposits and Investments 
 

The Village’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

 
State statutes permit the village to invest available cash balances, other than debt service funds, in time 
deposits of authorized depositories, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. Agency issues, high grade commercial 
paper, and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool. Available balances in the debt service fund may be invested 
in municipal obligations, U.S. Government obligations, and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool. Investments 
are reported at fair value unless the difference between amortized costs and fair value are immaterial. 
 
The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an 
investment company.  The Investment pool is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board with 
oversight by a Board of Trustees as authorized in Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 25.   

 
Receivables  
 

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition to property 
taxes for the village, taxes are collected for the state, county, school district, and technical college district. 
Property taxes levied for village purposes as well as other governmental units are recorded as “Taxes 
Receivable” in the fund statements. The village portion of the levy is shown as “Deferred Property Taxes” and 
the other governmental units portion is shown as “Due to Other Taxing Units”. The village share is recognized 
as revenue in the following year when the services financed by the levy are provided. Taxes collected in 
advance of the year for which they are levied are shown as reduction of the taxes receivable balance at 
December 31. The lien date and levy date are both in December 2014. Due dates for collection of taxes are 
January 31, 2015 and July 31, 2015. 
 
Long-Term Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a nonspendable 
fund balance account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. 

 
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amounts with uncollectible amounts recognized under the direct 
write-off method except for the fire and rescue fund billings. An allowance for uncollectible fire and rescue 
billings has been established in the amount of $38,743 at December 31, 2014. An allowance for uncollectible 
telecommunication revenues has also been established in the amount of $20,785 for the Telecommunications 
Fund. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided for any other receivables since such 
allowance would not be material. 

 
Inventories and Prepayments 
 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first in/first out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental funds are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect 
costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and 
fund financial statements. 

 
Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, land improvements, equipment, and infrastructure are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. 
Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date 
of donation. Infrastructure assets prior to January 1, 2004 have been included. 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. Depreciable capital assets of the Village are depreciated using the straight line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

 
Assets: Years 
 Buildings 20-50 
 Land Improvements 20-50 
 Equipment 5-25 
 Infrastructure 40 
  

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund fixed assets are accounted for as capital outlay 
expenditures in the year purchased. No depreciation is recorded in the governmental fund financial statements. 
Fixed assets in the proprietary funds are accounted for the same way as in the government-wide statements. 

 
Compensated Absences 
 

The Village has not recorded liabilities for vested employee vacations and sick leave. Under terms of 
employment, village employees are granted vacations and sick leave in varying amounts. All vested vacation 
and sick leave pay are accrued, if material, when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A 
liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured.  
 
Benefits are recorded as expenditures in the fund statements as paid while recorded in the statement of 
activities, if material, as earned. The value of vested benefits at December 31, 2014 was immaterial. The value 
of vested benefits was calculated based upon rate of pay in effect at December 31, 2014.  
 

Long-term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, if 
material, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds or notes using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenses. 
 
In the fund statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
Claims and Judgments 
 

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would normally be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are recorded during the year as expenditures in the governmental funds. If they 
are not to liquidated with expendable available financial resources, no liability is recognized in the governmental 
fund statements. The related expenditure is recognized when the liability is liquidated. Claims and judgments 
are recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities 
are incurred. There were no significant claims or judgments at year-end. 
 

Equity Classifications 
 
Equity in the government-wide financial statements is reflected in three components: 

- Net Investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, land contracts, or 
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 

- Restricted net position – consists of net position with restrictions placed on their use either by external 
groups or state and federal law. 

 
- Unrestricted net position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of the other two. 

 
Equity in the Fund financial statements is reflected in the following categories: 
 

- Nonspendable Fund Balance – This includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in 
spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The village shall report 
inventories, prepaid items, long-term advances and receivables, and other amounts legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact as nonspendable. 
 

- Restricted Fund Balance – This includes amounts limited by external parties, laws or regulations, 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The village shall report amounts as restricted that can be 
spent only for specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external source providers, or through legislation.  
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is village policy to use unrestricted 
resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed. 
 

- Committed Fund Balance – This includes amounts that are committed for specific purposes by formal action 
of the Village Board.  
 

- Assigned Fund Balance – This includes amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes but are 
neither restricted nor formally committed. Intent can be expressed by the Board or by an individual or 
subordinate high level body to which the Village Board has delegated authority. The village board has not 
delegated authority to assign fund balance for a specific intended purpose. 
 

- Unassigned Fund Balance – This includes any remaining amounts in the General Fund that are not 
classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned. In other funds, the unassigned classification 
shall be used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which 
amounts have been restricted, committed, or assigned. 
 

NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

A. Budgetary Information 
 
A budget for the General Fund was adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. The budget was adopted in compliance with all material state statutes.  
 
Budgetary information as presented in the fund financial statements is derived from: 
 

- A public hearing to obtain taxpayer comments on the proposed budget 
- The annual operating budget as originally adopted by the village board 
- Individual amendments, if any, to the original budget as approved by the village board during the year. 

 
Budget appropriations lapse at year-end unless specifically carried over to the next year. 
 

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2014, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts in the following funds: 
 
The General Fund had excess expenditures for Culture and Recreation ($17,060). These overexpenditures 
were funded by available fund balance and by other functions in which budgeted amounts were in excess of 
actual expenditures.  
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 

C. Deficit Fund Equity/Net Position 
 

The Recreation Fund had a deficit fund balance of $255,143 as of December 31, 2014. In addition, the Tax 
Incremental District No. 5 had a deficit fund balance of 15,597 at December 31. 2014. 
 
The Telecommunications Utility Fund, created in 2004, had deficit net position of $1,314,645 as of December 
31, 2014. The utility has incurred large operating expenses from 2005 thru 2011, but has only accrued a small 
amount of user charges.  
 

D. Restricted Revenue Bond Accounts 
 
Under the provisions of the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the 2008 water utility and sewer utility 
revenue bonds, a portion of the operating revenues must be set aside in various accounts as described below: 
 
Special Redemption Fund – To be used for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds. Revenues 
sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the bonds shall be set aside into this fund. 
 
Depreciation Fund – The depreciation fund shall be used for the payment of principal and interest on the 
outstanding bonds at any time when there is insufficient money in the special redemption fund and for the 
maintenance of the reserve fund. When the balance in the special redemption fund is sufficient for its purposes, 
money in the depreciation fund may be expended for repairs, replacements, new construction, extensions, or 
additions to the system. Revenues shall be deposited into the water system and sewer system depreciation 
funds until such amounts as the village board may from time to time determine to constitute an adequate and 
reasonable depreciation account for the water system and sewer system is accumulated therein. The Village 
Board has not yet determined the depreciation fund funding amounts. 
 
Reserve Account – To additionally secure the payment of principal and interest on the bonds, a separate 
account is to be established within the special redemption fund known as the reserve account. The amount in 
the reserve account shall be $174,000. Funds in the reserve account are to be used solely for the payment of 
debt service on the bonds if ever net revenues of the water system and sewerage system are insufficient to 
make a debt service payment. The balance in the reserve account at December 31, 2014 was $ 181,097. 
 
The various funds and accounts have been established. 
 

E. DNR Replacement Fund 
 
The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources required the creation of a equipment replacement fund as a 
condition of receiving a grant for the sewer utility. The equipment replacement fund has been established and 
the balance at December 31, 2014 was $ 827,126. 
 

F. Long-Term Debt Proceeds 
 

The long-term debt issues require that the proceeds be used for a specific purpose and that the funds be 
separated from operating funds. During the year, proceeds from long-term debt have been deposited in the 
village’s operating funds.  
 
NOTE 3 – DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
A - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The village’s deposits may include checking accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts, and 
certificates of deposit. The village’s investments consisted of deposits in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool 
and United States Treasury Notes. 
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2014 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits.  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial 
credit risk. As of December 31, 2014, $8,719,320 of the government’s bank balance of $8,969,320 was exposed 
to custodial credit risk as follows: 
 

 Uninsured and Uncollateralized $ 8,868,608
    
 Total $ 8,868,608

 
Differences between bank balance and book balance represent deposits in transit and outstanding checks. 
 
FDIC insurance provides coverage in the amount of $250,000. Depository insurance is also provided by the 
State Deposit Guarantee Fund of the State of Wisconsin. The coverage is limited to $400,000 above the 
applicable insurance provided by the FDIC. However, due to the relatively small size of the Guarantee Fund in 
relation to the total coverage, total recovery of losses may not be available. As a result, this coverage was not 
considered in computing the above amount. 
 
State Statutes authorize the village to invest in various types of investments as per Wisconsin Statute 66.04(2) 
and 67.11(2). During 2014, the village’s investments consisted of amounts in the State Treasurer’s Investment 
Pool and U.S. Treasury Notes. The balance at December 31, 2014 was $4,339,889 for the state investment 
pool. 
 
Total cash and investments at December 31, 2014 consisted of the following: 
 

Deposits $ 9,118,608 
Investments – State Investment Pool  4,339,889 
Petty Cash  150 
   Total Cash and Investments $ 13,458,647 
   
Total per financial statements:   
   Cash and Investments – Current $ 2,105,872 
   Cash and Investments – Restricted  6,640,552 
   Cash and Investments – Cash Overdraft  (1,432,970) 
   Agency Fund – Tax Collection Fund  6,145,193 
        Total $ 13,458,647 

 
B  – RESTRICTED ASSETS 
The following represent the balances of restricted assets as of December 31, 2014: 
 

Capital Projects Fund:  
   Capital Outlay Funds, including TID, Special Assessments, & Other  $ 2,633,978
  
Community Development Authority:  
  Reserve Funds $ 0
  
General Fund:  
    Police Impact Fees $ 122,506
  
Water Utility:   
 Bond Reserve Fund – 2008 Issue $ 111,124
 Special Redemption Fund – 2008 Issue  843
 Depreciation Fund – 2008 Issue  21,548
 Impact Fees  1,035,864
    Total $ 1,169,379
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December 31, 2014 
 

Sewer Utility:    
 Department of Natural Resources Equipment Replacement Fund $ 827,126
 Bond Reserve Fund – 2008 Issue  69,972
 Special Redemption Fund – 2008 Issue  2,356
 Depreciation Fund – 2008 Issue  5,419
 Connection Fees  1,787,208
 South Interceptor Connection Fees  22,608
    Total $ 2,714,689

 
C - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Governmental activities:  Balance        
1-01-2014 

  
Additions 

  
Removals 

 Balance 
12-31-2014 

Land  $ 847,361 $ 0 $ 0 $ 847,361
Buildings & Improvements   5,986,532  0  0  5,986,532
Equipment  3,245,092  78,849  0  3,323,941
Infrastructure  13,493,993  0  0  13,493,993
Totals  23,572,978  78,849  0  23,651,827
      
Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation for: 

     

  Buildings & Improvements  1,293,003  134,240  0  1,427,243
  Equipment  1,561,176  160,599  0  1,721,775
  Infrastructure  3,542,475  318,391  0  3,860,866
Total Accumulated      
  Depreciation  6,396,654  613,230  0   7,009,884
Governmental Activities Capital      
  Assets – Net $ 17,176,324 $ (534,831) $ 0 $ 16,641,943
Land and construction work in progress are not depreciated. Depreciation expense was charged to the following 
governmental functions as follows: 
 

General Government $ 16,393
Public Safety  123,916
Public Works  370,898
Culture and Recreation  102,023
 Total Depreciation of Governmental Activities $ 613,230

 
Business-type activities:  Balance       

1-01-2014 
  

Additions 
  

Removals 
 Balance 

12-31-2014 
Land – Water Utility $ 352,219 $ 0 $ 0 $ 352,219
Land – Sewer Utility  32,500  0  0  32,500
Water Utility Infrastructure  17,050,348  4,199,485  22,310  21,227,523
Sewer Utility Infrastructure  30,174,755  90,341  0  30,265,096
Telecommunications    1,920,999  0  0  1,920,999
Totals  49,530,821  4,289,826  22,310  53,798,337
      
Less: Accumulated 
Depreciation for: 

     

  Water Utility  3,658,915  412,438  22,310  4,049,043
  Sewer Utility  13,314,058  766,464  0  14,080,522
  Telecommunications  1,453,105  467,894  0  1,920,999
Total Accumulated      
  Depreciation  18,426,078  1,646,796  22,310   20,050,564
Business-Type Activities      
  Capital Assets – Net $ 31,104,743 $ 2,643,030 $ 0 $ 33,747,773
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December 31, 2014 
 
 
 
Land and construction work in progress are not depreciated. Depreciation expense was charged to the following 
business-type functions as follows:   
       

Water Utility $ 412,438
Sewer Utility  766,464
Telecommunications Utility  467,894
 Total Depreciation of Business-type activities $ 1,646,796

 
 
The useful life of the Telecommunications fixed assets has been reduced to zero. 
 
E – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 
 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund  Amount 
    
Due to/ From Other Funds:   
               None                         None $ 0
    
 
The village maintains one checking account for all disbursements. The cash is reflected in the General Fund 
and all other funds. Funds with a negative cash balance are reflected as cash overdrafts in the financial 
statements. These include the water utility ($546,933), Sewer Utility ($886,037), TID #5 ($15,597), and the  
Recreation Fund ($245,170).  
 
The Community Development Authority and the Capital Projects Fund transferred $1,285,329 and $948,538, 
respectively, to the Debt Service Fund to pay for their budgeted portion of debt service payments in 2014. The 
Fire and Rescue Fund also transferred $115,675 to the Debt Service Fund to pay for its portion of the refunded 
long-term debt due in 2014.  
 
F - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 
 
Long-Term obligations of the village at December 31, 2014 are as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities: 
 
 

          Amounts 
  Balance      Balance  Due Within 
  1-1-2014  Increases  Decreases  12-31-2014  One Year 
General           
Obligation:           
  Notes/Bonds $ 15,584,078 $ 3,025,000 $ 1,882,113 $ 16,726,965 $ 2,442,337
CDA Revenue        
  Bonds  3,910,000  0  3,910,000  0  0
Totals $ 19,494,078 $ 3,025,000 $ 5,792,113 $ 16,726,965 $ 2,442,337
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December 31, 2014 
 
 
Business-Type Activities: 
 

          Amounts 
  Balance      Balance  Due Within 
  1-1-2014  Increases  Decreases  12-31-2014  One Year 
General 
Obligation:  

          

   Bonds – Sewer $ 845,922 $ 0 $ 27,887 $ 818,035 $ 83,663
           
Revenue Bonds:           
 Water Utility  586,282  0  107,434  478,848  113,573
 Sewer Utility  368,718  0  67,566  301,152  71,427
        
Clean Water        
   Fund:        
    Sewer Utility  1,930,303  0  365,681  1,564,622  375,598
Totals $ 3,731,225 $ 0 $ 568,568 $ 3,162,657 $ 644,261
 
All general obligation debt is secured by the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the village. 
Business-type activities debt is payable from user fees of those funds. 
 
In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the village may not exceed five 
percent of the equalized value of taxable property within the village. The debt limit for general obligation debt as 
of December 31, 2014 was $27,691,485. General obligation debt totaled $17,545,000 at December 31, 2014. 
 
Governmental activities debt at December 31, 2014 is comprised of the following individual issues: 
 

  Original Issue Interest Maturity  Balances 
Issue  Amount Dates Rates Dates  12-31-2014 

G.O. Refunding Bonds $ 4,884,500 11-1-05 3.7-3.75% 12-1-18 $ 3,581,965
G.O. Refunding Bonds  6,975,000 1-25-07 3.55-3.95% 12-1-22  5,875,000
G.O. Refunding Bonds  1,235,000 10-9-13 .40-1.75% 4-1-19  940,000
G.O. Promissory Note  4,845,000 8-26-10 2.00-2.625% 12-1-18  1,530,000
G.O. Promissory Note  2,380,000 8-16-12 .45-2.45% 4-1-22  1,775,000
G.O. Refunding Bonds  3,025,000 12-9-14 .4-3.55% 6-1-28  3,025,000
Total Governmental      
   Activities Debt     $ 16,726,965
       
Business-type debt at December 31, 2014 is comprised of the following individual issues:       
  

  Original  Issue Interest Maturity  Balances 
Issue  Amount Dates Rates Dates  12-31-2014 

Water Utility:            
   Revenue Bond $ 1,068,200 2-10-08 3.3-3.8% 5-1-18 $ 478,848
Sewer Utility:       
   Revenue Bond  671,800 2-10-08 3.3-3.8% 5-1-18  301,152
   Clean Water Fund  6,130,258 7-8-98 2.712% 5-1-18  1,564,622
   G.O. Refunding Bond  1,115,500 11-1-05 3.7-3.75% 12-1-18  818,035
Total Business-Type       
   Debt      $ 3,162,657
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Aggregate cash flow requirements for the retirement of long-term principal and interest on December 31, 2014 
is as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities (excluding CDA): 

        
Year Ended       

December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
2015 $ 2,442,337 $ 496,758 $ 2,939,095
2016  2,143,956  452,282  2,596,238
2017  2,201,660  391,488  2,593,148
2018  2,235,012  326,537  2,561,549
2019  1,664,000  258,211  1,922,211

2020-2024  5,189,000  517,715  5,706,715
2025-2029  851,000  59,989  910,989

Totals $ 16,726,965 $ 2,502,980 $ 19,229,945
      

Business-type Activities: 
 

Year       
Ended       

December 31  Principal  Interest  Total 
2015 $ 644,261 $ 93,505 $ 737,766
2016  812,828  73,241  886,069
2017  842,587  46,600  889,187
2018  862,981  18,826  881,807

    
Totals $ 3,162,657 $ 232,172 $ 3,394,829

      
 

G. DEVELOPER AGREEMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
The village has entered into various developer agreements with developers. The village is obligated to pay 
various amounts to developers if certain conditions of the developer agreements are fulfilled. As December 31, 
2014, the village was obligated under seven agreements the sum of $32,512. These amounts will be paid out 
over various time periods. The annual tax increments levied are being used to fund these payments.  
 
 
H.   LONG-TERM ADVANCE BETWEEN GENERAL FUND AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS UTILITY 
 
The village passed a resolution in 2011(11-09) that established a long-term advance between the General Fund 
and the Telecommunications Utility. The advance will be repaid as revenues in excess of expenses are 
received by the utility. No interest is being charged on the advance. No amounts were repaid in 2014. 
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NOTE 5 – OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 A - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
All eligible Village of Jackson employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system. All employees, initially employed by a 
participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year and expected to 
be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. All 
employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at 
least 1200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are 
eligible to participate in the WRS. 
 
Effective the first day of the first pay period on or after June 29, 2011 the employee required contribution was 
changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees, including 
Teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective contributions are the 
same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially 
determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for 
by an existing collective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates for 2014 are: 
 

 Employee Employer 
General (including Teachers) 7.0% 7.0% 
Protective with Social Security 7.0% 10.31% 

 
The payroll for village employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $2,005,966, 
the employer's total payroll was $2,195,306. The total required contribution for the year ended December 31, 
2014 was $309,581, which consisted of $184,239, or 9.2% of payroll from the employer and $125,342, or 6.3% 
of payroll from the employees. Total contributions for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were 
$255,803 and $255,803, respectively. These contributions were equal to the required contributions for each 
year. 
 
Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation employees with 
less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective employees with more than 25 years of service) are entitled to 
receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation employees) and 
receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the benefit are (1) final average earnings, (2) years 
of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final average earnings is the average of the employees three 
highest years’ earnings. Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement 
benefit may withdraw their contribution and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For 
employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990 and no longer actively employed after April 24, 
1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants 
employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 thru June 30, 2011 are immediately vested. Participants 
who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011, must have five years of service to be vested. 
 
 A - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONT’D) 
The village had no prior service liability at December 31, 2014. 
 
The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all benefits are 
determined under Chapter 40 of the State Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be 
obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, WI. 53707-7931. 
 
B – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss; theft or damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; workers compensation; and health care for its employees. All of these risks are covered through the 
purchase of commercial insurance coverage, with minimal deductibles. Settled claims have not exceeded the 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage 
compared to the prior year. 
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C – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Village has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by 
the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. Management believes such disallowances, if any, 
that would be immaterial. 
 
D – COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY LEASES 
 
Lease dated 4-1-1999 
The lease agreement between the Village and the Community Development Authority is dated as of April 1, 
1999 and expires at the earlier of the redemption of all of the bonds or December 1, 2017. During the term of 
the lease the village agrees to pay the authority rents during the calendar year equal to 100% of principal and 
interest requirements of the Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds in such calendar year. The 
facilities subject to the lease include certain real estate and public infrastructure improvements in the village’s 
Tax Incremental District No. 3, including streets, the village’s largest capacity water supply well and elevated 
water storage facility. 
 
The village intends to use the tax increments generated within Tax Incremental District No. 3 of the village to 
make the rental payments due under the lease. The payment of the principal and interest on the bonds is 
reflected in the Community Development Authority Fund or the Debt Service Fund of the village. 
 
The agreement also provides that if at any time the balance in the Reserve Account of the debt service fund 
falls below the reserve requirement of $500,000 the village covenants to pay the authority an amount sufficient 
to restore the Reserve Account to the reserve requirement. The bonds related to this lease agreement were 
refinanced and the agreement was replaced by a lease agreement dated September 9, 2009. 
 
Lease dated 11-19-2008 
A lease agreement between the Village and the Community Development Authority for the $3,000,000 
Community Development Lease Revenue Bonds commenced on November 19, 2008 and expires at the earlier 
of the redemption of all of the bonds or December 1, 2028. During the term of the lease the village agrees to 
pay the authority rents on May 1 and November 1 of each year equal to 100% of the principal and interest 
requirements of the bonds on the next debt service payment date. The facilities subject to the Lease (the 
“leased property”) include the Community Center and the three acre site it is located on. 
 
The Authority shall establish a Reserve Account for this issue in the amount of $250,235. The lease provides 
that if at any time the balance in the Reserve Account of the debt service fund falls below the reserve 
requirement of $250,235, the village agrees to pay to the paying agent for the authority additional funds to 
restore the reserve account to the reserve requirement. The bonds related to this lease agreement were 
refinanced with general obligation debt in 2014.  
 
Lease dated September 9, 2009 
The amended lease agreement between the Village and the Community Development Authority for the 
$3,100,000 Community Development Authority Lease Revenue Bonds commenced on September 9, 2009 and 
expires on June 1, 2015, unless the parties shall sooner terminate this agreement by mutual agreement: 
provided, however, that the end of said term shall not be advanced nor shall this agreement expire or be 
terminated so long as the bonds shall be outstanding; provided, further, that when the authority shall have fully 
paid all of the principal and interest on the bonds, the lease agreement shall automatically terminate. 
 
The Authority shall establish a Reserve Account for this issue in the amount of $310,000. The lease provides 
that if at any time the balance of the Reserve Account of the debt service fund falls below the reserve 
requirement of $310,000 the village covenants to pay the authority an amount sufficient to restore the Reserve 
Account to the reserve requirement. The bonds related to this lease agreement were refinanced with general 
obligation debt in 2014.  
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E – LONG-TERM DEBT REFINANCING 
 
In December  2014, the Village issued $3,025,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an average 
interest rate of 2.84% to refund two Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds totaling $3,175,000. 
The average interest rate on the refinanced revenue bonds were 3.0 to 5.6%. The net proceeds of $2,849,279 
were used to refund a 2008 Community Development Authority Revenue Bond and purchased U.S. 
Government Securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide 
for all future debt service payments on the 2008 Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds. As a 
result, the 2008 Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds are considered to be defeased and the 
liability for those bonds has been removed from the government wide statement of net position. 
 
The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of 
the old debt of approximately $73,000. The village completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt 
service payments over the next 14 years by $250,425. The economic gain is immaterial. 
 
F – TELECOMMUNICATIONS UTILITY LEASE 
 
The village approved the lease and option to purchase certain village telecommunications utility assets in 
December, 2010. The transaction was approved by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin. The initial 
term of the lease/option agreement is 20 years. During the term of the lease/option agreement, the village will 
share in the revenues generated from the utility. The percentage of gross revenues to be paid to the village 
varies depending on the nature of the service provided, but in no event will the lease payments fall below 
$1,200 per month. Payments have not been made in a timely manner from the company and a total of $20,785 
is receivable at December 31, 2014. No additional revenues were accrued in 2014 as no payments are being 
made. This includes the minimum monthly charge plus other expenses paid by the village for the company. In 
addition, an allowance for uncollectible lease payments has been established in the amount of $20,785 at 
December 31, 2014. 
 
The lease/option agreement grants the company the right to purchase the utility. The company may exercise 
that right to purchase during an option period as defined in the agreement. The purchase price will be 
determined based on a formula that takes into account the revenues generated from the utility during the lease 
portion of the agreement. The proceeds of the lease and sale, if applicable, will be used to pay the costs 
associated with the utility, including outstanding debt service for the utility.   
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2014

 

  Total 
Recreation Fire and Park TID #5 Nonmajor

 Fund Rescue Fund Fund Fund Funds
                                                                                                                             

ASSETS

Cash and Investments $ (245,170) $ 471,318 $ 46,834 $ (15,597) $ 257,385
Taxes Receivable 184,473  184,473
Accounts Receivable  38,743   38,743
TOTAL ASSETS $ (60,697) $ 510,061 $ 46,834 $ (15,597) $ 480,601

                                                                                                                             
  LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
  OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
 Vouchers Payable $ 7,621 $ 29,086 $ 0 $ 0 $ 36,707
 Accrued Payroll 2,352 11,238 13,590
 Total Liabilities 9,973 40,324 0 0 50,297

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
  Property Taxes 184,473 0 0 0 184,473

Fund Balances:      
  Reserved 0 0 46,834 (15,597) 31,237
  Assigned 469,737 469,737
  Unassigned (255,143)    (255,143)
                                                                                                                             
 TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS      
   OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ (60,697) $ 510,061 $ 46,834 $ (15,597) $ 480,601
                                                                                                                               

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF JACKSON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2014

 
 Total 

Recreation Fire and Park TID #5 Nonmajor
 Fund Rescue Fund Fund Fund Funds

                                                                                                                          
REVENUES

Taxes $ 149,210 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 149,210
Intergovernmental  30,491 30,491
Public Charges for Services 210,985 195,512 26,169  432,666
Intergovernmental Charges 75,959 522,400 598,359
Miscellaneous 77 35  112
TOTAL REVENUES  436,154  748,480  26,204  0  1,210,838

                                                                                                       
EXPENDITURES

Current:
 Public Safety 0 554,687 0 0 554,687
 Culture and Recreation 412,953    412,953
Capital Outlay:
 Public Safety 50,088 50,088
 Conservation and Development 15,597 15,597

  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 412,953 604,775 0 15,597 1,033,325

                                                                                                       
Excess of Revenues Over
 (Under) Expenditures 23,201 143,705 26,204 (15,597) 177,513

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
 Proceeds from Long-Term Debt 0
 Operating Transfer In (Out) 0 (115,675) 0 0 (115,675)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0 (115,675) 0 0 (115,675)

                                                                                                           
Net Changes in Fund Balances 23,201 28,030 26,204 (15,597) 61,838

Fund Balances - Beginning (278,344) 441,707 20,630 0 183,993
                                                                                                        
Fund Balances - Ending $ (255,143) $ 469,737 $ 46,834 $ (15,597) $ 245,831
                                                                                                                         

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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RESOLUTION 15-07 
              

 
 PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO  
EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS, UNDER  

SECTION 66.0703 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES 
              

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin is pursuing the 
construction and reconstruction of public improvements consisting of water and sanitary sewer mains; storm 
sewers; pavement; curb and gutter; and sidewalks and the related improvements and expenses for the benefit of 
the properties described on Exhibit A hereto.  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin: 
 

1. The Village Board hereby declares its intention to exercise its police power under Section 66.0703 of the 
Wisconsin Statutes to levy special assessments upon the properties described in Exhibit A hereto, for 
special benefits conferred upon such property by the construction of public improvements consisting of 
water and sanitary sewer mains; storm sewers; pavement; curb and gutter; and sidewalks and the related 
improvements and expenses. 

 
2. The Village Board hereby determines that the construction of such improvements is in the best interest of, 

and for the health and welfare of the municipality and the property benefited by the improvements, and 
therefore constitutes an exercise of the police power. 

 
3. The amount of such assessments shall be determined and levied upon completion of the construction of 

public improvements consisting of water and sanitary sewer mains; storm sewers; pavement; curb and 
gutter; and sidewalks and the related improvements and expenses. 

 
4. The number of installments, rate of interest, and the terms of payment will be included in the Final 

Resolution after the Public Hearing; which will be held upon completion of the project, when final costs 
have been determined.  

 
5. Every Special Assessment levied under this Resolution, shall be a lien against the property assessed, from 

the date of the Final Resolution of the Village Board determining the levy. 
 

6. The Village Engineer shall prepare a report consisting of the following: 
 

a.  Preliminary of the final plans and specifications for the Public Works. 
 
b.  An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed improvements. 
 

c.  A schedule of the proposed properties against which the assessments are to benefit. 
 
d.  A statement that each property against which the assessments are proposed, has       
     been inspected and is benefited, setting forth the basis of such benefit. 
 
e. Upon completion of the report, the Village Engineer shall file a copy with the Village  
    Clerk, and with the Village Treasurer. 
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                7.  The Village Clerk shall make a copy of the report available for public inspection. 
    
 
 

Introduced by: _______________                        Seconded by:_______________                                                   
 
 
Vote:         Aye           Nay            Passed and Approved: _______________                            
 
  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Michael E. Schwab, Village President 
 
 
Attest: ______________________________                                              
 Deanna L. Boldrey, Village Clerk-Treasurer 
 
Proof of Posting: 
 
I the undersigned, certify that I posted this Resolution on bulletin boards at the Village Hall, 
Post Office, and one other location in the Village.  
 
_________________________    _____________________ 
Village Official      Date 
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DRAFT MINUTES   
Board of Public Works Meeting 
Tuesday, April 28, 2015 – 7:00 P.M.  
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main Street  
1. Call to Order and Roll Call.  

Chairman Tr. Don Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Members present: Tr. Jack Lippold, Tr. Scott Mittelsteadt, Brian Heckendorf, Linda Granec, 
Scott Thielmann, and Corinne Benson 
Members excused: None. 
Staff present:  Brian Kober and John Walther.   

2. Approval of Minutes for March 24, 2015, meeting.  
Motion by Scott Thielmann, second by Linda Granec to approve the minutes of the  
March 24, 2015, Board of Public Works meeting.  Tr. Don Olson questioned if the Town’s 
Residents outstanding water bills had been paid.  Brian Kober commented that the Town had 
paid the outstanding Town water bills.         
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.    

3. Review of Improving Sports Park along Eagle Drive. 
 
Brian Kober reviewed the letter and pictures that were sent to the new Village President with the 
request to put the item on the agenda.  The pond is where the sump pump discharges.  The 
request is to re-grade the field.  It is a vacant field that is used for field hockey and soccer. This is 
not an official park of the Village.  This would be for Spruce Street.  Pheasant Lane does not 
have storm sewer. This is a private road.  The condo association would have to pay to put in the 
storm sewer.  There were up to six inches of rain at the time of the pictures.  The water has since 
drained out.  If we have three – four inches of rain this is a problem.  Brian commented to put the 
item on the five year plan.   
No official games are held here, it is used as a practice field.   
Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, Corinne Benson to put the item on the five year plan.  This would be 
a joint effort with the soccer club and the Village. 
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.    

4. Georgetown Drive Reconstruction Project - Update.  
Brian Kober reviewed the reconstruction project. Six people from the condo association attended 
the informal informational meeting with Brian prior to the Board of Public Works Meeting.  It 
will be a total road construction of Georgetown Drive.  The sanitary sewer was televised and it 
was found that the concrete pipe laterals are separating from the main line so it will need to be 
replaced.  The water main will also need to be replaced.  The item will go out to bid on May 5th 
and bids will open on May 19th.  This will be on the Board of Public Works agenda on May and 
then the Village Board in June.  The project might start right after Action in Jackson, with 
completion right before school starts.  Utilities will pay for a portion and assess for a portion.  
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Lippold to authorize Brian Kober to advertise for bids.        
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.       
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5. Resolution 15-07 Preliminary Assessment Georgetown Dr. Reconstruction Project.  
Brian Kober reviewed the resolution and map of the special assessment area.  Process of the 
special assessment process was explained by Brian.  An estimated cost will be sent out and a 
Public Hearing will be held by the Village Board with a final resolution.  Motion by Brian 
Heckendorf, second by Scott Thielmann, to recommend approval of Resolution 15-07 
Preliminary Assessment Georgetown Dr. Reconstruction Project.   
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

6. Review of Village Sidewalk Policy.  
Brian Kober reviewed the sidewalk policy that was put into place in 1991. Some areas were not 
in the Village when the policy was created. The policy needs to be updated.  Discussion ensued 
of the policy returning to the Board of Public Works with updated maps.  Motion by Scott 
Thielmann, second by Corinne Benson for Brian Kober to update the policy and bring it back to 
the Board of Public Works next month.      
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.   

7. Director of Public Works Report.  
Brian Kober reviewed the Public Works Report.  

 Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Mittelsteadt to place the report on file.   
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  

 8. Citizens/Village Staff to address the Board.  
 None.      
 9. Adjourn.  
 Motion by Tr. Mittelsteadt, second by Tr. Brian Heckendorf to adjourn at 7:32 p.m.     

Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.  
Respectfully submitted by: Deanna L. Boldrey 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        
  
 
 
 
Deanna, 
 
 
 
 
Please place the following item(s) on the B & F and VB Agenda’s for May. 
 
 
Approval to sell current Ambulance 1250 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
 
John 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMO: 
 
 
 
To:  Budget & Finance and Village Board Members 
 
From:  Chief Skodinski 
 
Date:  May 6, 2015  
 
Re:  Sale of Ambulance 1250 
 
 
The Jackson FD is expecting the delivery of its newest ambulance sometime in June the exact date is 
yet to be determined.  I would like the approval to start the process of advertising for sale the current 
Ambulance 1250, the 2002 Ford.  The JFD will be placing an ad in the “Dispatcher” which is a 
monthly publication that goes out to almost all of the fire departments in the state and also in the 
“Municipality”. I will also be sending out a letter to the private ambulance services and others in the 
region. 
 
Funding received from the sale of 1250 will be placed back into the apparatus reserve account. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Chief John Skodinski 
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE SCHEDULE 
 

May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2015 
 

  
Project Manager ................................................................................................................................... $120.00/hour 
 
Project Engineer ................................................................................................................................... $105.00/hour 
 
Senior Designer / Civil Engineer IV ........................................................................................................ $93.00/hour 
 
Registered Land Surveyor / Survey Crew Chief ..................................................................................... $89.00/hour 
 
One-man Survey Crew with GPS ......................................................................................................... $120.00/hour 
 
Civil Engineer III / Engineering Specialist IV .......................................................................................... $85.00/hour 
 
Civil Engineer II / Engineering Specialist III ............................................................................................ $76.00/hour 
 
Civil Engineer I / Engineering Specialist II .............................................................................................. $69.00/hour 
 
Engineering Specialist I / Civil Engineering Technician III ..................................................................... $64.00/hour 
 
Civil Engineering Technician II ............................................................................................................... $58.00/hour 
 
Civil Engineering Technician I ................................................................................................................ $52.00/hour 
 
Office Services ........................................................................................................................................ $48.00/hour 
 
Mileage .............................................................................................................................................. Current IRS rate 
 
Meals, lodging, air travel, 
telephone, supplies, postage .......................................................................................................................... At Cost 
 
Printing Services (In-house) 
 Photocopies (black & white) ....................................................................................... $0.10/impression 
 Photocopies (color) ..................................................................................................... $0.25/impression 
              Large Format Plots (black & white) .........................................................................................$1.00/S.F. 
 Large Format Plots (color) ........................................................................................................$2.00/S.F. 
 Mylar .........................................................................................................................................$2.00/S.F. 
 
Printing Services (Outside Service) ................................................................................................................. At Cost 
 
Expert Witness ..................................................................................................................................... $200.00/hour 

 
 Note:  Office Services, Civil Engineering Technician, and Engineering Specialist are paid time and one-half their 

actual wage for overtime.  The respective billed rate will be approximately 17% higher than the published rate 
to account for the overtime rate. 



Exhibit B 
 

 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2015 
 
 

1. This agreement, upon execution by both parties hereto, can be amended only by written instrument signed 
by both parties.  As the project progresses, facts uncovered may reveal a change in direction, which may 
alter the scope.  Gremmer & Associates, Inc., will promptly inform the Owner in writing of such situations so 
that changes in this agreement can be negotiated as required.  In the event the Owner orders additional 
work to be performed and a written instrument is not executed by both parties, the Owner shall be 
responsible for all costs associated with the additional work. 

 
2. Costs and schedule commitments shall be subject to renegotiation for delays caused by the Owner's failure 

to provide specified facilities or information, or for delays caused by unpredictable occurrences, including 
without limitation, fires, floods, riots, strikes, unavailability of labor or materials, delays or defaults by 
suppliers of materials or services, shutdowns, acts of God or the public enemy, or acts or regulations of any 
governmental agency.  Temporary delay of services caused by any of the above, which results in additional 
costs beyond those outlined, may require renegotiation of this agreement. 

 
3. Payment is due to Gremmer & Associates, Inc., upon 30 days of receipt of the invoice for professional 

services rendered.  Failure to make any payment when due is a breach of this Agreement and will entitle 
Gremmer & Associates, Inc., at its option, to suspend or terminate the Agreement and the provisions of the 
Scope of Work.  Interest of 1.5 percent per month (18 percent per annum) will accrue on accounts overdue 
by 30 days.  

 
4. The Owner shall make available to Gremmer & Associates, Inc., all relevant information or data pertaining to 

the project which is required to perform the Scope of Work. 
 
5. Gremmer & Associates, Inc., will provide and exercise the standard of care, skill and diligence required by 

customarily accepted professional practices normally provided in the performance of the services at the 
time and the location in which the services were performed. 

 
6.  Gremmer & Associates, Inc., will maintain insurance coverage in the following amounts: 

 
  Worker's Compensation   Statutory 
  General Liability 
   General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
   Operations / Injury  $1,000,000 
  Automobile Liability 
   Liability / Injury   $1,000,000 
   Property Damage  Value or Repair 
  Professional Liability Insurance  $1,000,000 
  Umbrella Liability Insurance  $2,000,000 



 
 
 

7. Termination of the agreement by the Owner or Gremmer & Associates, Inc., shall be effective upon seven (7) 
days written notice to the other party. The written notice shall include the reasons and details for 
termination.  Gremmer & Associates, Inc., will prepare a final invoice showing all charges incurred through 
the date of termination.  The Owner agrees to pay Gremmer & Associates, Inc., for the services performed 
to the date of termination. 

 
8. Gremmer & Associates, Inc., intends to serve as the Owner's professional representative for those services as 

defined in this agreement and to provide advice and consultation to the Owner as a professional. Any 
opinions of probable project costs, approvals, and other decisions made by Gremmer & Associates, Inc., for 
the owner are rendered on the basis of experience and qualifications and represent our professional 
judgment.  The Owner recognizes that Gremmer & Associates, Inc., does not have control over the costs of 
labor, materials or equipment, or over competitive bidding methods.  Accordingly, Gremmer & Associates, 
Inc., does not make any commitment or assume any duty to assure that bids or negotiated prices will not 
vary from any cost opinions prepared by Gremmer & Associates, Inc. 

 
9. This agreement shall not be construed as giving Gremmer & Associates, Inc., the responsibility or authority 

to direct or supervise construction means, methods, techniques, sequence, or procedures of construction 
selected by contractor or subcontractors, or the safety precautions and programs incident to the work of the 
contractors or subcontractors. 

 
10. The Owner releases Gremmer & Associates, Inc., from any liability and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 

Gremmer & Associates, Inc., harmless from any and all claims, damages, losses, and/or expenses, direct or 
indirect, or consequential damages, including but not limited to attorney’s fees and charges, and court and 
arbitration costs, arising out of, or claimed to arise out of, the performance of the services, except liability 
arising from the negligence of Gremmer & Associates, Inc. 
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